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AGRIWISE FINSERV LIMITED  
(Erstwhile StarAgri Finance Limited) 

(CIN: U65999MH1995PLC267097) 
Registered office: 601-604, A-wing, Bonanza Building, 
Sahar Plaza, J.B. Nagar, Andheri (E) Mumbai – 400059 

Email ID: Compliance@agriwise.com 
Website: https://www.agriwise.com/ 

Tel No.: (020) 40467777 Fax No.: (020) 40467788 
 

NOTICE TO THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
                                                                                                          
Notice is hereby given that the 28th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of shareholders of 
Agriwise Finserv Limited (Erstwhile StarAgri Finance Limited) (CIN: 
U65999MH1995PLC267097) will be held at shorter on 06th day, September, 2023 at 10.00 a.m. 
at the registered office of the Company at 601-604, A-wing, Bonanza Building, Sahar Plaza, 
J.B. Nagar, Andheri (E) Mumbai – 400059, to transact the following: 
 
Ordinary business: 
 
1. Adoption of Financial Statements: 
 

To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the Company for the 
year ended 31st March, 2023, including the audited Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2023, 
the statement of audited Profit and Loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement for the 
financial year ended on that date together with the reports of the Board of Directors (‘the 
Board’) and Auditors thereon. 

 
2. Re-Appointment of retiring director: 
 

To appoint a director in place of Mr. Suresh Chandra Goyal  [DIN: 02018073], who retires 
by rotation and, being eligible, seeks re‑appointment. 
 

Special Business: 
 
3.  Approval for Related Party Transactions: 
 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following 
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“Act”) and other applicable provisions, if any, read with Rule 15 of the Companies 
(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, (including any statutory modification(s) 
or any amendment thereto or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), and the 
Company’s policy on Related Party transaction(s), approval of shareholders be and are 
hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company to enter into contract(s)/ 
arrangement(s)/ transaction(s) with related parties within the meaning of Section 2(76) 
of the Act for the financial year 2023-24 as per the statement as detailed below: 
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Name of the 
Related Party 

Name of the Directors 
or KMP’s who is 
related 

Nature of 
Relationships 

Nature & particulars of the contracts 
or arrangements or transactions 

Monetary value 
of contracts or 
arrangements or 
transactions 

Star Agriware 
housing and 
Collateral 
Management 
Limited 
(SACML) 

Mr. Sureshchandra 
Goyal, Mr. Amith 
Agarwal, Mr. Amit 
Khandelwal and Mr. 
Amit Goyal, Directors  

Holding 
Company 

Contract for availing collateral 
Management services  on a continuous 
basis at a market competitive rate and 
at par with other vendors. 

Rs. 1,25,00,000/-  

Transactions of rent expenses for 
sharing common branch offices 
situated at different states/cities as per 
the respective lease agreement 

As per agreement 

Transactions of rent income for use of 
Chakala Office as per sub lease 
agreement dated 15 September, 2021. 

Rs. 60,000 

Star Agribazaar 
Technology 
Limited (SATL) 

Mr. Suresh Chandra 
Goyal, Mr. Amith 
Agarwal, Mr. Amit 
Khandelwal and Mr. 
Amit Goyal, Directors 
 

A private 
company where 

directors are 
member and 

director 
 

Transactions of rent income for use of 
Chakala Office as per sub lease 
agreement dated 15th  September, 
2021. 

Rs. 60,000 

Farmers Fortune 
(India)Private 
Limited (FFIPL) 

Mr. Sureshchandra 
Goyal, Mr. Amith 
Agarwal, Mr. Amit 
Khandelwal and Mr. 
Amit Goyal, Directors 
 

Fellow 
Subsidiary 

Transactions of rent income for use of 
Chakala Office as per sub lease 
agreement dated 15th  September, 
2021. 

Rs. 60,000/- 

Star 
Agriinfrastructu
re Private 
Limited (SAIPL) 

Mr. Sureshchandra 
Goyal, Mr. Amith 
Agarwal, Mr. Amit 
Khandelwal and Mr. 
Amit Goyal, Directors 
 

Fellow Subsidiary Transactions of rent income for use of 
Chakala Office as per sub lease 
agreement dated 15th  September, 
2021. 

Rs. 60,000/- 

Star 
Agrilogistics 
Private Limited 
(SALPL) 

Mr. Sureshchandra 
Goyal, Mr. Amith 
Agarwal, Mr. Amit 
Khandelwal and Mr. 
Amit Goyal, Directors 
 

Fellow Subsidiary Transactions of rent income for use of 
Chakala Office as per sub lease 
agreement dated 15th  September, 
2021. 

Rs. 60,000/- 

Shri Krishna 
Motor Company 

Mr. Amith Agarwal, 
Director 

Firm in which 
Director is a 
Partner 

Transaction of Rent payment for use of 
Chakala Office as per leave and license 
agreement dated 03rd September, 2021. 
 

Rs. 41,00,000/- 

Prashant 
Agarwal 

Mr. Amith Agarwal, 
Director 

Relative of a 
Director  

Transaction of Rent payment for use of 
Alwar branch office as per leave and 
license agreement dated 20th October, 
2020. 
 

Rs. 3,30,000/- 

Farmers Fortune 
(India)Private 
Limited (FFIPL) 

Mr. Sureshchandra 
Goyal, Mr. Amith 
Agarwal, Mr. Amit 
Khandelwal and Mr. 
Amit Goyal, Directors 
 

Fellow 
Subsidiary 

Assignment of lease rental by hiring 
Cold storage equipment’s to various 
vendors by FFIPL/Ecofrost  
Technologies Pvt. Ltd. as per 
agreement dated 20.03.2023  
 
 

Rs. 3,50,00,000/- 
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the consent, sanction, permission or approval of 
shareholders be and are hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company to 
enter into loan transactions in the ordinary course of business with the holding 
Company and the fellow subsidiary companies, related parties, provided that the 
aggregate value of transaction does not exceed INR 40,00,00,000 (Indian rupees forty 
crore only);  
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT as per the Policy, the consent of the shareholders is also 
accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company for the transactions which cannot be 
foreseen at the beginning of the year provided the value per transaction does not exceed 
INR 1,00,00,000 (Rupees One Crore Only).” 
 

 
 

By Order of the Board of Directors 
 For Agriwise Finserv Limited 

(Erstwhile StarAgri Finance Limited) 
  

      Sd/- 
Nikita Shelke 

 Company Secretary 
Membership No: A67955 

 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 25.05.2023 

 
NOTES: 

 
1. The Explanatory Statement setting out the material facts pursuant to Section 102 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 (‘‘the Act’’), in respect of the Special Business as set above and the 
details as required under Secretarial Standard on General meeting (SS-2) in respect of 
the Directors seeking appointment/ re-appointment at this General Meeting is annexed 
hereto. 
 

2. A REGISTERED EQUITY SHAREHOLDER WHO IS ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND 
VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND VOTE 
INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF AND SUCH PROXY NEED NOT BE A 
SHAREHOLDER OF THE COMPANY, THE INSTRUMENT APPOINTING A PROXY 
IN ORDER TO BE EFFECTIVE, SHOULD BE DEPOSITED AT THE REGISTERED 
OFFICE OF THE COMPANY DULY COMPLETED AND SIGNED, NOT LESS THAN 
48 (FORTY-EIGHT) HOURS BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING OF 
THE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS. 

 
3. A person can act as a proxy on behalf of shareholders not exceeding 50 (fifty) and holding 

in aggregate not more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting 
rights. A shareholder holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company 
carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not 
act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder. In case of joint holders attending the 
Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of names will be entitled to 
vote at the meeting. 
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4. Corporate shareholders are required to send to the Company Secretary a certified copy 
of the Board Resolution, pursuant to section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, authorizing 
their representative to attend and vote at 28th AGM. 
 

5. Notice of 28th AGM along with the Financial Statement is being sent only through 
electronic mode to those shareholders whose email addresses are registered with the 
Company. Shareholders may note that the Notice will also be available on the 
Company’s website at www.agriwise.com 
 

6. A shareholders or his/her Proxy is requested to bring the copy of the notice to the 
Meeting and produce the attendance slip, duly completed and signed, at the entrance of 
the Meeting venue.   
 

7. During the period beginning 24 hours before the time fixed for the commencement of the 
meeting and ending with the conclusion of the meeting, a shareholder would be entitled 
to inspect the proxies lodged at any time during the business hours of the Company, 
provided that not less than three days of notice in writing is given to the Company. 
 

8. The Company has been maintaining, inter alia, the following statutory registers at its 
registered office: 
 
i)  Register of contracts or arrangements in which directors are interested under section 

189 of the Act. 
ii)  Register of directors and key managerial personnel and their shareholding under 

section 170 of the Act. 
 
The said registers will be made accessible for inspection and shall remain open and be 
accessible to any shareholder during the continuance of the meeting. 
 

9. Shareholders are requested to: 
a) Notify immediately any change in their address to the Company. 
b) Quote their Folio Numbers in all correspondence with the Company. 
 

10. Route-map to the venue of the Meeting is provided at the end of the Notice. 
 

11. For ease of conduct, shareholders who would like to ask questions/express their views 
on the items of the businesses to be transacted at the meeting can send in their 
questions/comments in advance via email at compliance@agriwise.com. 
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENTS PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES 
ACT, 2013 
 
Item No. 3: 
 
Pursuant to provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies 
(Meeting of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, the contract(s) or arrangement(s) or 
transaction(s) with a Related Party as mentioned in clause (a) to (g) of the said section require 
a Company to obtain approval of the Board of Directors and subsequently shareholders of the 
Company by way of an ordinary resolution in case the value of Related Party Transactions 
exceeds the stipulated thresholds prescribed in Rule 15 of the Companies (Meeting of Board 
and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and transactions other than in ordinary course of business and on 
arm's length basis. 
 
Accordingly, Audit Committee and Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held 
on 25th May, 2023 have considered and approved the proposed contract(s) or arrangement(s) 
or transaction(s) with a Related Party, in one or more tranches, for financial year 2023-24 as 
per the statement provided in the resolution and also the Board has recommended the 
Resolutions at Item No.3 of this Notice as an Ordinary Resolutions for your approval. 
 
Hence, approval of shareholders by way of an Ordinary Resolution under section 188 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Meeting of Board and its Powers) Rules,2014 
is being sought to enable the Company to enter into proposed contract(s) or arrangement(s) 
or transaction(s), in one or more tranches, with a related party, for financial year 2023-24 as 
per the statement provided in the resolution. 
 
The Board recommends the resolutions as set out in Item No. 3 of notice for approval of 
shareholders of the Company as an Ordinary Resolution. 
 
All the relevant documents can be inspected at the office hours on working days at the 
registered office of the Company. 
 
Except Mr. Suresh Chandra Goyal, Mr. Amith Agarwal, Mr. Amit Khandelwal, Mr. Amit 
Kumar Goyal none of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives, in any way, 
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said resolution. 
 

By Order of Board of Directors 
 For Agriwise Finserv Limited  

(Erstwhile StarAgri Finance Limited) 
  

Sd/- 
 

Nikita Shelke 
 Company Secretary 

Membership No: A67955 
 

Place: Mumbai 
Date:  25th May, 2023 
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PROXY FORM 
Form No. MGT-11 

[Pursuant to Section 105 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19 (3) of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 

 
CIN : U65999MH1995PLC267097 
Name of the company : 

Agriwise Finserv Limited (Erstwhile StarAgri Finance Limited) 

Registered office: : 601-604, A-wing, Bonanza Building, Sahar Plaza, J.B. Nagar Metro Station,  
J.B. Nagar, Andheri (E) Mumbai MH 400059. 

Name of the Member(s) : ____________________________________________________________ 
Registered Address: :  

____________________________________________________________ 
E-mail ID : ____________________________________________________________ 
Folio/ DP ID - Client ID  : ____________________________________________________________ 
 

I/We, being the member (s) of ________________shares of the above named company, hereby appoint: 
 

(1) Name : ________________  Address : ______________________ or failing him  
/ her  Email Id : ________________  Signature : ______________________ 

(2) Name : ________________  Address : ______________________ or failing him 
 / her  Email Id : ________________  Signature : ______________________ 

(3) Name : ________________  Address : ______________________  
 Email Id : ________________  Signature : ______________________  

 
as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 28th Annual General Meeting 
of the company, to be held on Wednesday, 06th September, 2023 at 10:00 a.m. at the registered office of the 
Company at 601-604, A-wing, Bonanza Building, Sahar Plaza, J.B. Nagar Metro Station, J.B. Nagar, Andheri 
(E) Mumbai – 400059 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below: 

 
Resolution 

number 
Resolution Vote (Optional see Note) 

(Please mention no. of shares) 
For Against Abstain 

Ordinary Business 

1. Adoption of Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31st 
March, 2023 and the Reports of the Directors’ and Auditors’ 
thereon. 

   

2. Re-appointment of Mr. Suresh Chandra Goyal  [DIN: 02018073], 
who retires by rotation. 

   

Special Business 
4. To consider and approve proposed Related Party Transactions, for 

F.Y. 2023-24. 
   

 
   Signed this _______ day of __________ 20____     
                                                                                                                              

      
Signature of member                                                                           Signature of proxy                                                                                                 

  
Notes: 

1. It is optional to indicate your preference. If you leave the 'for', 'against' or 'abstain' column blank against any or 
all of the resolutions, your proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he/she may deem appropriate 

2. This form, in order to be effective, should be duly stamped, completed, signed and deposited at the registered office 
of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the Annual General Meeting. 

 
 
 

Affix 
Revenue 
stamp 
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Attendance Slip 
 

AGRIWISE FINSERV LIMITED (ERSTWHILE STARAGRI FINANCE LIMITED) 
REGISTERED & CORP. OFFICE: 601-604, A-wing, Bonanza Building, Sahar Plaza, 

 J.B. Nagar Metro Station, J.B. Nagar, Andheri (E) Mumbai – 400059. 
CIN: U65999MH1995PLC267097   Website:  www.agriwise.com 

 
   Folio No. / DP ID / Client ID:  
 

 
    Number of shares held 

 
   I certify that I am a member / proxy for the member of the Company. 
 

I hereby record my presence at the 28th Annual General Meeting (the ‘AGM’) of members of 
Agriwise Finserv Limited (Erstwhile StarAgri Finance Limited) held on Wednesday, 06th 
September, 2023 at 10:00 a.m. at registered office of the Company at 601-604, A-wing, Bonanza 
Building, Sahar Plaza, J.B. Nagar Metro Station, J.B. Nagar, Andheri (E) Mumbai – 400059. 

 
 
 

________________________________                                         ________________________ 
Name of the Member / Proxy (in Block Letters)                             Signature of the Member / 
Proxy                         

 
 
Note: 
 
 1. Please complete the Folio/DPID-Client ID No. and name, sign the Attendance Slip and hand it 

over at the Attendance Verification counter at the entrance of the Meeting Hall.  
2. Member/Proxyholder desirous of attending the meeting should bring his copy of the Notice for 

reference at the meeting 
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AGRIWISE FINSERV LIMITED (ERSTWHILE STARAGRI FINANCE LIMITED) 
REGISTERED & CORP. OFFICE: 601-604, A-wing, Bonanza Building, Sahar Plaza, 

 J.B. Nagar Metro Station, J.B. Nagar, Andheri (E) Mumbai – 400059. 
CIN: U65999MH1995PLC267097   Website:  www.agriwise.com 

 
 
Route Map to the Venue of 28th Annual General Meeting 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

 
To, 
The Members, 
Agriwise Finserv Limited (Erstwhile StarAgri Finance Limited) 
   
Your Directors have pleasure in presenting Twenty-Eight Annual Report on the business and 
operations of your Company together with the audited standalone financial statements for 
the Financial Year (“FY”) ended 31st March, 2023. 
 
The Board’s Report is prepared based on standalone financial statements of the company. 
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS : 
 
The Company’s financial performance for the year under review is given hereunder:  
                                       (INR in Lakhs) 
 

PARTICULARS 2022-23  2021-22  
Revenue from Operations 3,105.47 4045.82 
Other Income 603.11 349.36 
Profit/loss before Depreciation, Finance Costs, 

1480.64 2560.45 
Exceptional items and Tax Expense 
Less: Depreciation/ Amortisation/ Impairment 205.02 198.24 
Profit /loss before Finance Costs, Exceptional items 
and Tax Expense 

120.70 2362.21 

Less: Finance Costs 1,114.96 1483.27 
Profit /loss before Exceptional items and Tax 
Expense 

160.66 878.94 

Add/(less): Exceptional items - - 
Profit /loss before Tax Expense 160.66 878.94 

Less: Tax Expense (Current & Deferred) 39.96 266.84 
Profit /loss for the year 120.70 612.10 
Balance of profit /loss for earlier years 1,701.75 1212.07 
Less: Transfer to Reserves   
Transfer to Special Reserve under Section 45-IC of The 
RBI Act, 1934 

122.42 122.42 

Balance carried forward 1,798.31 1701.75 
 

BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS : 
 

Several co-lending and co-origination agreements were operationalized by the company 
during F.Y 2023, and it is currently working to solidify its position as one of the pioneers of 
the "Lending as a Service" business model. The Company has count of 38 branches across 
pan India and in process of opening multiple branches in near future. 

 
As of March 2023, we have almost more than 2 Co-lending/Co-origination including 
Business Correspondence arrangement with various lenders, and the company is also in the 
midst of forming partnerships with more banks and NBFCs. During the year the company 
has entered into various products, with the above mentioned arrangements which reiterates 
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the confidence of our lending partners in business model. The company’s Co-lending AUM 
as on March 2023, stood at INR 5589 lakhs.  
 
For the financial year ended 31st March, 2023, your Company gained a net profit of INR 
120.70 lakh as against a net profit of INR 612.10 lakh in the previous financial year. The total 
Income for the year under consideration was INR 3,708.58 lakhs and total expenditure was 
INR 3,547.92 lakhs. Further, The Company mobilized INR 8780.01 lakh from various Bank 
and NBFC. The Company disbursed INR 20,651 lakh during the financial year 2022-23. As 
on 31st March, 2023, the Asset Under Management (AUM) of the Company stood at INR 
23,810/-lakhs. 

 
CHANGES IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS :   
   
During the year, there was no change in the nature of business of the Company within the 
RBI regulated NBFC organisational framework. 
  
DIVIDEND:   
   
The Directors do not recommend payment of any dividend on the Equity Shares for the 
Financial year ended 31st March 2023 to conserve capital for future business expansion. 
  
TRANSFER TO RESERVES:  
   
During the year the Company is proposing to transferred a sum of INR 122.42 lakh to 
Statutory Reserve as required under Regulation 45-IC of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 
issued by RBI. 
 
SHARE CAPITAL: 
 
During the reporting period paid up capital of the Company stood at INR 15,000 lakh. The 
Company had not issued any shares during the year under review. 
   
ANNUAL RETURN:   
   
Pursuant to Sections 92 and 134 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12 of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, a copy of the Company’s website 
https://www.agriwise.com/investors/. 

 
MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS:   
   
Minimum four pre-scheduled Board meetings are held annually. Additional Board meetings 
are convened by giving appropriate notice to address the Company’s specific needs. In case 
of business exigencies or urgency of matters, resolutions are passed by circulation. The 
intervening gap between the Meetings was within the period prescribed under the Act and 
Secretarial Standards issued by Institute of Company Secretaries of India. Appropriate 
compliance of relevant Secretarial Standards was observed while conducting meetings of  
 
Board of Directors of the Company. The names and categories of Directors on Board and 
their attendance at board meetings held during the financial year 2022-23 are as under: 
 
The Company Secretary monitors the Board and Committee proceedings to ensure that 
terms of reference/ charters are adhered to, decisions are properly recorded in the minutes 
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and actions on the decisions are tracked. Meeting effectiveness is ensured through clear 
agenda, pre-circulation of material in advance, detailed presentations at the meetings. 
Additionally, based on the agenda, the Board/ Committee meetings are attended by 
members of the senior leadership as invitees, which bring in the requisite accountability and 
also provide developmental inputs. 

 
Name of Directors Category Number of Board Meetings 

Entitled to 
attend 

Attended 

Mr. Sureshchandra Goyal Managing Director 7 6 
Mr. Amith Agarwal  Whole Time Director 7 6 
Mrs. Mangala Prabhu Independent Director 7 7 
Mr. G. Chandrashekhar 
Aiyar 

Independent Director 7 7 

Mr. Amit Goyal  Non-executive Director 7 4 
Mr. Amit Khandelwal Non-executive Director 7 6 

 
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 
 
The Committees of the Board focus on certain specific areas and make informed decisions in 
line with the delegated authority. Pursuant to changes in the Board Composition with 
appointment of new Directors on the Board of the Company the composition of all statutory 
and non statutory committees was reconstituted.:   
 

a. Audit Committee : 
 
The audit committee of the Company is constituted in accordance with the provisions of 
Section 177 of the Act and terms of reference of audit committee have been specified in 
writing by the Board of Directors of the Company in accordance with section 177 (4) of the 
Act.  
 
The Committee met five (5) times during the financial year on 19th May, 2022, 10th August 
2022, 14th November, 2022, 06th February, 2023 and 03rd March, 2023. The necessary quorum 
was present for all the meetings.  
 
The composition of audit committee and the details of meetings attended by its members 
during the financial year 2022-23 are given below: 
 
Name of Directors Category Number of Meetings 

Entitled to 
attend 

Attende
d 

Mrs. Mangala Prabhu Chairman -Independent Director 5 5 
Mr. G. 
Chandrashekhar Ayer 

Independent Director 5 5 

Mr. Amit Goyal Non-executive Director 5 3 
 

b. Nomination and Remuneration Committee: 
 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company is constituted in 
accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Act and the scope of activities / terms 
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of reference of Nomination and Remuneration Committee are in accordance with Section 
178 of the Act.  
 
The committee met twice (2) during the financial year on 19th May, 2022 and 20th December, 
2022. The necessary quorum was present at the meeting.  
 
The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the details of 
meetings attended by its members during the financial year 2022-23 are given below: 
 

Name of Directors Category Number of Meetings 
Entitled to 
attend 

Attended 

Mrs. Mangala Prabhu Chairman– Independent 
Director 

2 2 

Mr. G. Chandrashekhar Aiyar Independent Director 2 2 
Mr. Amith Goyal Non-Executive  Director 2 2 

 
c. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee : 
  
The Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee of the Company is constituted as per 
the requirements of Section 135 of the Act and rules made there under. The terms of reference 
of Committee are in accordance with the provisions of Section 135 of the Act and rules made 
there under.  
 
The committee met once during the financial year on 19th May, 2022. The necessary quorum 
was present at the meeting.  
 
The composition of CSR Committee and the details of meetings attended by its members 
during the financial year 2022-23 are given below: 
 
Name of Directors Category Number of Meetings 

Entitled to attend Attended 
Mr. G. 
Chandrashekhar 
Aiyar 

Chairman -
Independent Director 

1 1 

Mrs. Mangala Prabhu Independent Director 1 1 
Mr. Amith Agarwal Director 1 1 

 
d. Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO): 
 
Pursuant to the regulatory framework for NBFC issued by Reserve Bank of India, Asset 
Liability Management Committee (ALCO) was constituted. ALCO lays down policies and 
quantitative limits that involve assessment of various types of risks and shifts in assets and 
liabilities to manage such risks. ALCO of the Company monitors, on an ongoing basis, 
liquidity, interest rate and funding risks to which the Company is susceptible.  
 
The Committee met four (4) times during the financial year on 26th May, 2022, 12th August, 
2022, 16th November, 2022 and 06th February, 2023. The necessary quorum was present for 
all the meetings.  
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During the year under review the Committee was re-constituted. The composition of ALCO 
Committee and the details of meetings attended by its members during the financial year 

2022-23 are given below: 
 
 
 
*For maintaining Good Corporate Governance and to strengthen the committee Mr. Amit 
Khandelwal and Mr. Amit Goyal Non-Executive Director was inducted in committee with 
effect from 06th February, 2023. 
 
e. Risk Management Committee: 
 
Pursuant to regulatory framework for NBFC issued by Reserve Bank of India, Risk 
Management Committee was constituted and the Committee shall be responsible for 
framing, reviewing and implementing the Risk Management Framework for the company 
and such other matters as may be suggested by the Board. The terms of reference of the 
Committee inter alia include ensuring formulation and implementation of the Risk 
Management Policy of the Company. 
 
The Committee met twice (2) time during the year on 16th November, 2022 and 06th February, 
2023. The necessary quorum was present for the meeting.  
 
During the year under review the Committee was reconstituted. The composition of Risk 
Management Committee and the details of meetings attended by its members during the 
financial year 2022-23 are given below: 
 
Name of Committee 
Members 

Category Number of Meetings 
Held Attended 

Mr. Amith Agarwal  Executive Director  2 2 
Mr. Sureshchandra Goyal Managing Director 2 2 
Mr. Amit Goyal  Non-Executive 

Director 
2 2 

Mr. Kalpeshkumar Ojha Chief Financial Officer 2 2 
Mr. Mayank Singhal Policy Head 2 2 

 
f. IT Strategy & Steering Committee: 
 

Name of Members Category Number of Meetings 
Entitled to 
attend 

Attended 

Mr. Amith Agarwal Whole Time Director - Chairman 4 4 
Mr. Amit Khandelwal* Non-executive Director  1 1 
Mr. Amit Goyal*  Non-executive Director  1 1 
Mr. Kalpeshkumar 
Ojha 

Chief Financial Officer 4 4 

Mr. Mayank Singhal Credit- Head 4 4 
Mr. Kunal Baradiya Strategy - SVP 4 2 
Mr. Hemant Kothari Senior officer -  Finance & 

Accounts 
4 4 
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IT Strategy Committee of the Company is constituted in accordance with the RBI Master 
Direction - Information Technology Framework for the NBFC Sector, as applicable to 
NBFCs-  
Systemically Important. The terms of reference of the Committee are as per the said RBI 
Directions. 
The Committee met two (2) times during the financial year on 11th August, 2022 and 06th 
February, 2023. The necessary quorum was present for the meetings.  
 
During the year under review the Committee was re-constituted. The composition of IT 
Strategy & Steering Committee and the details of meetings attended by its members during 
the financial year 2022-23 are given below: 
 
Name of Committee 
Members 

    Category Number of Meetings 
Entitled to 
attend 

Attended 

Mr. G. Chandrashekhar 
Aiyar 

Chairman – Independent 
Director  

2 2 

Mr. Amith Agarwal Whole Time Director  2 2 
Mr. Avinash Shingate*  Chief Technology Officer 2 2 
Mr.Kalpeshkumar Ojha  Chief Information Officer 2 2 

   
*Mr. Anirban Dhar has resigned from the employment of the Company and therefore 
Committee was re-constituted w.e.f. 19th May, 2022 with following members: 
 
Mr. Avinash Shingate was inducted in committee with effect from 19th May, 2022. 
 
Mr. G. Chandrashekhar Aiyar    – Chairman-Independent Director 
Mr. Avinash Shingate*                 – Chief Technology Officers 
Mr. Kalpeshkumar Ojha              – Chief Information Officers 
Mr. Amith Agarwal                      –  Whole Time Director 
 
DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY/JOINT VENTURES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES: 
 
During the year under review, your Company does not have a subsidiary / Associate / Joint 
Venture company. Also, the Company did not become a part of any Joint Venture. 
 
Accordingly, as at the end of the year under review and also as on the date of this Report, 
your Company does not have any Subsidiary and/or Associate Company and your 
Company is not a part of any Joint Venture. 
 
MATERIAL CHANGES AFTER BALANCE SHEET DATE:   
 
There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the 
Company occurred between the end of financial year to which this financial statement 
relates and on the date of this report. 
 
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY AND TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION: 
   
Being a Financial Services Company, the information on conservation of energy and 
technology absorption as stipulated under Section 134 (3) (m) of the Companies Act 2013 
read  
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with rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 is not attracted and no such information 
is required to be given. However, the Company require normal consumption of electricity 
and is taking every necessary step to reduce its consumption of energy. 
 
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO: 
 
Your Company has neither incurred any expenditure in foreign exchange nor earned any 
Foreign Exchange during the year under the review. 
 
PARTICULARS OF LOAN, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 
186: 
   
The Company, being an NBFC registered with the RBI and engaged in the business of giving 
loans in ordinary course of its business, is exempt from complying with the provisions of 
section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to loans. Accordingly, the disclosures of 
the loans given as required under the aforesaid section have not been made in this Board’s 
Report. 
 
Particulars of loans, guarantee and investments outstanding during the financial year is 
furnished in note nos. 6 and 7 to the standalone financial statements of the Company. 
 
PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED 
PARTIES:   
 
All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on an 
arm's length basis and were in an ordinary course of business. There are no materially 
significant related party transactions made by the Company with Promoters, Directors, Key 
Managerial Personnel or other designated persons which may have a potential conflict with 
the interest of the Company at large. 
 
All Related Party Transactions are placed on a quarterly basis before Audit Committee and 
also before Board for approval. Your Company has a Policy on related party transactions 
which was approved by Board at its meeting held on 30th October, 2015. The Related Party 
Transactions are in accordance with Policy of the Company. 
 
Information on transactions with related parties pursuant to Section 134(3)(h) of the Act read 
with rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 in Form AOC-2 is annexed as 
Annexure A and forms part of this report.  
 
RBI GUIDELINES: 
 
Reserve Bank of India (RBI) granted the Certificate of Registration to the Company in June 
2015 vide Registration No. B.01.00545, to commence the business of a non-banking financial 
institution without accepting deposits. Your Company is a Non Deposit Taking Systemically 
Important Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFCND- SI). The Company continues to 
comply with all the requirements prescribed by Reserve Bank of India from time to time. 
 
DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:   
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In accordance with provisions of the Act and as per Articles of Association of the Company, 
Mr. SureshChandra Goyal  [DIN: 02018073] is liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing 
Annual General Meeting and being eligible, has offered his candidature for re–appointment. 
 
During the year under review, Mr. Sureshchandra Goyal continues to hold the position of 
Managing Director of the Company. 
 
All directors of the Company have confirmed that they are not disqualified from being 
appointed as directors in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 
 
During the year under review, the non-executive directors of the Company had no pecuniary 
relationship or transactions with the Company, other than sitting fees, commission and 
reimbursement of expenses, if any. 
 
During the year under review, the Board at its meeting held on 20th December, 2022 
appointed Ms. Nikita Shelke as Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company 
in place of Ms. Sankari Muthuraj, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer who has 
resigned from the employment of the Company w.e.f 17th October, 2022.  
 
Ms. Nikita Shelke is an associate Member of the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 
she has done her Law Graduation from Mumbai University. She has over 5 years of 
experience working with Secretarial and Compliance Department. 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Act, Mr. Sureshchandra Goyal - Managing 
Director, Mr. Amith Agarwal – Whole Time Director, Mr. Kalpeshkumar Ojha – Chief 
Financial Officer and Ms. Nikita Shelke – Company Secretary are the Key Managerial 
Personnel’s of the Company as on 31st March, 2023.    
 
DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:   
   
The Independent Directors (IDs), Mrs. Mangala Prabhu and Mr. G. Chandrashekhar have 
submitted a declaration of independence, as required pursuant to section 149(7) of the Act 
stating that each of them meet criteria of independence as provided in section 149(6) of the 
Act and there has been no change in the circumstances affecting their status as an 
independent directors of the Company.   
 
The Board is of opinion that Independent Directors of the Company possess requisite 
qualifications, experience and expertise in the fields of finance and accounting, economics, 
risk management, management and administration, financial market, technology, market 
infrastructure, co-operatives, legal, agriculture markets, agriculture economics, macro-
economics, post-harvest technologies, international development and they hold highest 
standards of integrity.  
 
Both Independent Directors have also given declarations that they have registered 
themselves with Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs (IICA) in terms of Section 150 of the 
Act read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 
2014. Further, in terms of Section 150 of the Act read with Rule 6(4) of the Companies 
(Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, Independent Directors are required 
to undertake online proficiency self-assessment test conducted by the IICA.  However, both 
Independent Directors are exempted from the said online proficiency self-assessment test. 
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POLICY ON DIRECTORS' APPOINTMENT, REMUNERATION AND OTHER 
DETAILS: 
 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee reviews the disclosure made with regard to 
the Company’s policy on directors’ appointment and remuneration including criteria for 
determining qualification, positive attributes, independence and other matters as specified 
in Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, in the Directors’ Report, in terms of Section 134 
(1) (e) of the Companies Act, 2013.The Nomination and Remuneration Policy is available on 
the Company's website https://www.agriwise.com/investors/. 

 
EVALUATION OF BOARD:  
   
The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, Board 
committees and Individual Directors pursuant to provisions of the Act and in accordance 
with Nomination, Remuneration & Evaluation Policy of the Company. The performance of 
Board was evaluated by Board after seeking inputs from all Directors on the basis of criteria 
such as Board composition and structure, effectiveness of board processes, information and 
functioning, etc. The performance of committees was evaluated by board after seeking 
inputs from committee members on the basis of criteria such as composition of committees, 
effectiveness of committee meetings, etc. 
 
The performance of independent directors was evaluated by the entire Board of Directors, 
excluding the director being evaluated.  
 
In a separate meeting of Independent Directors held on 31st March, 2023, performance of 
non-Independent Directors, performance of board as a whole and performance of the 
Chairman was evaluated, taking into account views of executive directors and non-executive 
Directors. The directors expressed satisfaction with the evaluation process.  
 
VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY: 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 177(9) & (10) of the Act read with Rule 7 of the 
Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 22 of the Listing 
Regulations (as amended from time to time), the Company has framed Vigil 
Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy (“Policy”) to enable directors and employees to report 
genuine concerns or grievances, significant deviations from key management policies and 
reports of any non-compliance and wrong practices, e.g., unethical behavior, fraud, violation 
of law, inappropriate behavior /conduct etc. The functioning of the Vigil Mechanism is 
reviewed by the Audit Committee from time to time. None of the Directors or employees 
have been denied access to the Audit Committee of the Board. The objective of this 
mechanism is to maintain a redressal system which can process all complaints concerning 
questionable accounting practices, internal controls, or fraudulent reporting of financial 
information. The Policy framed by the Company is in compliance with the requirements of 
the Act and Listing Regulations. The Whistle Blower Policy is also hosted on the Company’s 
website https://www.agriwise.com/investors/. 

 
DETAILS OF POLICY DEVELOPED AND IMPLEMENTED BY THE COMPANY ON ITS 
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES: 
 
The Company has constituted “Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee of Board 
of Directors in accordance with Section 135(1) of the Act and the Companies (CSR Policy) 
Rules, 2014, as published and revised by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs from time to time. 
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The CSR policy is also hosted on the Company’s website 
https://www.agriwise.com/investors/. 
 
Detailed information report on CSR spent/unspent Expenditure by the Company on CSR 
initiatives taken during the year pursuant to section 135 of the Act is given in the Annual 
Report on CSR for FY 2022-23 and annexed as Annexure B. 
  
 
RISK MANAGEMENT:   
   
The Company is exposed to different types of risks including interest rate risk, business risk, 
liquidity risk, operational risk, credit risk including credit concentration risk, reputation risk, 
technology risk and compliance risk. The Company has formed Risk Management 
Committee and has developed and implemented Risk Management Policy covering the risk 
mapping, trend analysis, risk exposure, potential impact and risk mitigation process. A 
detailed exercise is being carried out to identify, evaluate, manage and monitor both 
business and non-business risk. Your Company has established procedures to periodically 
place before the Risk Management Committee and Board of Directors, the risk assessment 
and minimisation procedures being followed by the Company and steps taken by it to 
mitigate these risks. 
 
SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, 
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013: 
 
The Company has in place a policy for prevention of Sexual Harassment at workplace in line 
with the requirements of The Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013. The Company has constituted Internal Complaints 
Committee (ICC) to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All 
employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy. 
 
No case of sexual harassment was reported during the financial year 2022-23. However, due 
to the sudden death of Mr. K.K Jayaprakash, member of the committee. It was re-constituted 
during the year under review and the composition of Committee as on 31st March, 2023 is as 
under: 
 
Ms. Purva Sharma -  Presiding Officer 
Mr. Sarabjeet Japra - Member 
Mr. Dominic Fernandes  - Member 
Mrs. Mangala Prabhu - External member 
 
CREDIT RATING 
 
During the period under review, brief details of the ratings received from the credit rating 
agencies by the Company for its outstanding instruments are as under: 
 
Facilities Care Infomerics CRISIL* 

Long-term Bank Facilities  CARE BB+; Positive IVR BBB-/ IVR BBB-
/Stable 

Short-term Bank Facilities  CARE A4+ - - 
Non-Convertible 
Debenture 

- IVR BBB-/ - 
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All of the above ratings indicate a high degree of safety with regard to timely payment of 
interest and principal. 
 

   *CRISIL Rating received dated 06th April, 2023. 
      
EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PLANS: 
 
The disclosure pertaining to Employee Stock Option Plan 2015 and the Scheme of the 
Company, pursuant to Rule 12(9) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 
2014 is annexed as Annexure C and forms part of this report. 
 
PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AS PER SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 
2013:  
  
During the year under the review, no employee employs who falls under the information 
required pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5 (1) of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 relating to median 
employee’s remuneration for the financial year. 
 
PUBLIC DEPOSITS: 
 
Your Company being a Non-Deposit Accepting Non-Banking Finance Company, has not 
accepted any deposits from the public during the year under review and shall not accept any 
deposits from the public without obtaining prior approval of the Reserve Bank of India (RBI). 
The Company vide circular resolution dated 06th April, 2023 confirmed that, it has neither 
accepted any public deposits in the past nor is holding any public deposit as on that date 
and  
will not accept any public deposits during the Financial Year 2022-23, without the prior 
written approval of the Reserve Bank of India. 
 
DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE 
REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS:  
 
There have been no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or 
tribunals impacting going concern status and the Company’s operations in future. 
 
DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:   
   
Pursuant to Section 134 (5) of the Act, Board of Directors, to the best of their knowledge and 
ability, confirm that:  
 

(a)  In preparation of annual financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023, applicable 
accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material 
departures, if any; 

 
(b) We have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair  view 
of state of affairs of the company at the end of financial year and of profit of the company 
for that period; 
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(c)  We have taken proper and sufficient care to the best of our knowledge and ability for 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities; 

 
(d)  We have prepared financial statements for the financial year ended 31st March, 2023 on a 

going concern basis;  
 

(e)  We have laid down the internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and such 
internal financial controls are adequate and operating effectively; and 

 
 (f)  We have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable 

laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 
 
SECRETARIAL STANDARDS: 
 
The Company complies with all applicable mandatory secretarial standards issued by the 
Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 
 
REGULATORY COMPLIANCE: 
 
The Company has complied with the Regulations of RBI as on 31st March, 2023, as are 
applicable to it as a Non-Deposit taking Non-Banking Finance Company. The Company is 
also in compliance with Non-Banking Financial Company – Systemically Important Non-
Deposit taking (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 except for Reserve Bank of India Master 
Direction on Information Technology Framework for the NBFC Sector pertaining to 
migrating to IPv6 platform. 
 
DETAILS OF FRAUD REPORT BY AUDITOR: 
  
During the year under review, no frauds have been reported by the Auditor (Statutory 
Auditor, Secretarial Auditor) to the Audit Committee/ Board, under Section 143(12) of the 
Act. 
 
AUDITORS: 
 
a. Statutory Auditor- 
 
M/s M.K. Dandeker & Co, Chartered Accountants (FRN.: 000679S), was proposed to be 
appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company for first term of five consecutive years, who 
shall hold office from the conclusion of this 27th Annual General Meeting till the conclusion 
of 32nd Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in the year 2027. They have 
confirmed their eligibility under Section 141 of the Act and the Rules framed there under.  
 
b. Internal Auditor- 
 
Pursuant to the provision of Section 138 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act 
read with Rule 13 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (including any modification or 
re-enactment thereof), the Company has appointed M/s. Maheshwari & Co. Chartered 
Accountants as an Internal Auditor of the Company for the financial year 2022-23.  
 
c.  Secretarial Auditor- 
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Pursuant to provisions of Section 204 of the Act read with Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed M/s. Bhatt  
& Associates, Company Secretaries LLP to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company 
for the financial year 2022-23.  
 
The Secretarial Audit Report as received from M/s. Bhatt & Associates, Company Secretaries 
LLP in the prescribed Form No. MR - 3 is annexed to this Board’s Report and marked as 
Annexure “D”. 
 
STATUTORY AND SECRETARIAL AUDITORS' REPORT: 
 
There were no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made the Statutory Auditors. 
Except on the below mentioned remarks/Observations in their report:  
 
Explanation on observations by Secretarial Auditors in Secretarial Audit Report: 
 
Non-filing of form MGT-6 under Companies act, 2013. 
 
Migrating to IPv6 platform pursuant to the Reserve Bank of India Master Direction on 
Information Technology Framework for the NBFC Sector.  
 
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 
2015. 
 
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 except SEBI circular dated 29.03.2022 - Operational 
guidelines for ‘Security and Covenant Monitoring’ using Distributed Ledger Technology 
(DLT). The Company had made a requisite follow up for the same, however delay was from 
NSDL. 
 
INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS: 
 
The Company has in place, an adequate internal control and internal audit system managed 
by qualified and experienced people. Main objective of the system is to safeguard the 
Company's assets against loss through unauthorised use and pilferage, to ensure that all 
transactions are authorised, recorded and reported correctly and timely, to ensure various 
compliances under statutory regulations and corporate policies are made on time and to 
figure out the weaknesses persisting in the system and suggest remedial measure for the 
same. The Company has continued its efforts to align all its processes and controls with best  
practices in these areas. The Board of Directors of the Company would be keeping a close 
watch on compliance and internal control systems as per regulatory requirements. 
 
THE DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER 
THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 (31 OF 2016) DURING THE YEAR 
ALONG WITH THEIR STATUS AS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR: 
 
During the Financial Year 2022-23, no application was made and/or any proceeding has 
been initiated or pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, by any Financial 
and/or Operational Creditors against your Company. As on the date of this report there 
were no details of application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 2016) during the year. 
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THE DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE 
AT THE TIME OF ONE-TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE 
TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH 
THE REASONS THEREOF: 
 
During the Financial Year 2022-23, the Company has not made any settlement with its 
Bankers from which it has accepted any term loan. Hence the details of difference between 
amount of valuation done at the time of one-time settlement and the valuation done while 
taking loan from the Banks or Financial Institutions are not required to be provided. 

 
MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS: 
 
Maintenance of cost records and requirement of cost audit as prescribed under the 
provisions of Section 148(1) of the Act are not applicable in respect of the business activities 
carried out by the Company. 
 
APPRECIATION: 
 
Your Directors would like to record their appreciation of the hard work and commitment of 
the Company’s employees and warmly acknowledge the unstinting support extended by its 
bankers, alliance partners and other stakeholders in contributing to the results. 
 
CAUTIONARY STATEMENT: 
 
Statements in the Board’s Report and Management Discussion and Analysis, describing the 
Company’s objectives, outlook, opportunities and expectations may constitute “Forward 
Looking Statements” within the meaning of applicable laws and regulations. Actual results 
may differ from those expressed or implied expectations or projections, among others. 
Several factors make a significant difference to the Company’s operations including the 
government regulations, taxation and economic scenario affecting demand and supply, 
natural calamity and other such factors over which the Company does not have any direct 
control. 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:   
   
Your Directors would like to place on record, their gratitude for the cooperation and 
guidance received from all the statutory bodies, especially the RBI. Your Directors also thank 
the shareholders, clients, vendors, investors, banks and other stakeholders for placing their 
faith in the Company and contributing to its growth. We would also like to appreciate the 
hard work put in by all our employees, and we look forward to their continuing patronage, 
going forward. 
  
For and On behalf of Board of Directors of Agriwise Finserv Limited 
(Erstwhile StarAgri Finance Limited)   
  
 
 
 
 
Sureshchandra Goyal  Amith Agarwal 
Managing Director                Whole Time Director 
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DIN: 02018073   DIN: 01140768 
 
Place : Mumbai 
Date : 25th May, 2023  
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ANNEXURE - A 

 
FORM NO. AOC -2 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 

 
Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company 
with related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Act including certain 
arm’s length transaction under third proviso thereto. 
 
1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis: Nil 

 
2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis: 
 

Sl. 
No 

Name (s) of the 
related party & 
nature of 
relationship 

Nature of 
contracts/ 
arrangement
s/transaction 

Duration of 
the contracts 
/arrangement 
/transaction 

Salient terms of the 
contracts or arrangements 
or transaction including 
the value, if any. 

Date of 
approv
al by 
the 
Board 

Amount 
paid as 
advance
s, if any 

1 Star Agriware 
housing and 
Collateral 
Management 
Limited, Holding 
Company 

Collateral 
management 

fees 

12 months 
w.e.f. 01st 
April, 2022 to 
31st March, 
2023. 

Collateral management 
fees amounting to                      
₹35.80 lakh for FY 2022-23. 

Since, 
the 
related 
party 
transact
ions 
are in 
ordinar
y 
course 
of 
busines
s 
and are 
at arm’s 
length 
basis, 
approv
al 
of the 
Board 
is 
not 
applica
ble. 
Howev
er, 
necessa
ry 

NIL 

2 Shri Krishna 
Motor Company, 
Partner 
ship Firm in 
which Director is 
a partner 
 

Leave and 
license 

Agreement 

36 months Renewal of Leave and 
license Agreement of 
Chakala Office for a period 
of 36 Months commencing 
w.e.f. 15.09.2021 to 
14.09.2024 at a monthly 
rent of  ₹3.13 lakh. 

NIL 

3 Prashant Agarwal Relative of a 
Director 

12 months 
w.e.f. 01st 

April, 2022 to 
31st March, 

2023. 

Transaction of Rent 
payment for use of Alwar 
branch office during the 
period from 01st April, 
2022 to 31st March, 2023 
amounting to Rs.4.25 lakhs 

 

4 Star Agribazaar 
Technology 
Limited, A 
private company 
where directors 
are member and 
director  

Sub-lease 
Agreement 

3 years Renewal of sub-lease 
Agreement of Chakala 
Office for a period of 3 
years commencing w.e.f. 
15th  September, 2021 

NIL 

5 Star Agriware 
housing and 
Collateral 
Management 

Sub-lease 
Agreement 

3 years Renewal of sub-lease 
Agreement of Chakala 
Office for a period of 3 
years commencing w.e.f. 
15th  September, 2021 

NIL 
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Limited, Holding 
Company  

approv
als 
were 
granted 
by the 
Audit 
Commi
ttee 
from 
time 
to time 

6 Farmers 
Fortune 
(India)Private 
Limited, Fellow 
Subsidiary  

Sub-lease 
Agreement 

3 years Renewal of sub-lease 
Agreement of Chakala 
Office for a period of 3 
years commencing w.e.f. 
15th  September, 2021 

 

7 Star 
Agriinfrastructur
e Private Limited, 
Fellow Subsidiary  

Sub-lease 
Agreement 

3 years Renewal of sub-lease 
Agreement of Chakala 
Office for a period of 3 
years commencing w.e.f. 
15th  September, 2021 

NIL 

8 Star Agrilogistics 
Private Limited, 
Fellow Subsidiary 

Sub-lease 
Agreement 

3 years Renewal of sub-lease 
Agreement of Chakala 
Office for a period of 3 
years commencing w.e.f. 
15th  September, 2021. 

NIL 

9 Farmers 
Fortune 
(India)Private 
Limited, Fellow 
Subsidiary 

Lease 
agreement  

As per 
transaction  

Transaction of loan for 
buying cold storage 
equipment’s amounting to  
₹224.98 lakhs. 

NIL 

10 Farmers 
Fortune 
(India)Private 
Limited, Fellow 
Subsidiary 

Processing 
fees  

Processing fees 
as per 

transaction 

Processing fees for 
initiating loan to buy cold 
storage  equipment’s 
amounting to                      
₹2.65 lakhs.  

NIL 

 
 
For and On behalf of Board of Directors of Agriwise Finserv Limited 
(Erstwhile StarAgri Finance Limited)   
 
           
 
 
Sureshchandra Goyal  Amith Agarwal 
Managing Director               Whole Time Director 
DIN: 02018073   DIN: 01140768 
Place : Mumbai 
Date : 25th May, 2023  
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Annexure_B  

REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY FOR FY 2022-23 

1. A brief outline on CSR policy of the Company: 

The Company has adopted a Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”) Policy in 
accordance with the applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and allied 
rules (hereinafter referred as “the Act”). The Company’s CSR Policy focuses on 
implementing Company’s CSR activities in the field of Health Care & Sanitation, 
Drinking Water, Education, Livelihood Enhancement, Environmental 
Sustainability & Rural development projects. The Company may also undertake 
programs to promote rural sports and culture, conservation of natural resources, 
skill development, Entrepreneurship building, and other community need based 
infrastructure projects. 
 
The Policy is available on the website of the Company at http:// www. 
agriwise.com. 

2. Composition of CSR Committee: 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, the Company has duly constituted the CSR 
Committee. The composition of the CSR Committee and the details of meetings 
attended by its members during the financial year 2022-23 are given below:  
 
Sr. 
No. 

Name of Directors Designation / Nature of 
Directorship 

Number of CSR 
Meetings 
Held Attended 

1 Mr. G. Chandrashekhar 
Aiyar 

Chairman -Independent 
Director 

1 1 

2 Mrs. Mangala Prabhu Independent Director 1 1 
3 Mr. Amith Agarwal Executive Director 1 1 

3.   Web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects 
approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company: 
https://www.agriwise.com. 

 
4.    Executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR projects 

carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable.NA 

5.  (a) Average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135. INR    
602.60 Lakhs. 

(b) Two percent of the average net profit of the Company as per Section 135 (5). INR 
12.05 Lakhs. 
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    (c)  Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or programmes or activities of the previous 
financial years. N.A 

           (d)  Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, if any. 1.91 Lakhs 
 
           (e)  Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)]. INR 10.14 lakhs 
 

       6. (a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project). 

 
    (b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads.NA 
 
    (c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable.NA 
 
   (d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)].: 06 Lakhs 
 
   (e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year: 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) 

Sl. 
No

Name of the Project Item from 
the list of 
activities 

in 
schedule 
VII to the 

Act 

Local 
area 
(Yes/ 
No) 

Location of 
the project 

Amount 
spent for 

the 
project 
(in Rs.) 

Mode of 
implementation 

- Direct 
(Yes/No) 

Mode of 
implementation - 

Through 
implementing 

agency 

State District Name CSR 
registration 

number 

1. Maharaja Agrasen Medical 
Education and Scientific 

Society  – Contribution for  
medical & other 

equipment for COVID 
patients 

Promoting 
Healthcare 

Yes Location: 
Hissar  

Haryana 

1 Lakhs Direct 
  

2. ThinkAg- IKP CENTRE 
FOR ADVANCEMENT IN 

AGRICULTURAL 
PRACTICE 

Promoting 
Agriculture 

activity  

Yes Location: 
Mumbai 

Maharashtra 

   5 Lakhs Direct   

Total 06 Lakhs    

Total Amount 
Spent for the 

Financial Year 
2022-2023 
 (in INR) 

Amount Unspent (in INR) 

Total Amount transferred to 
Unspent CSR Account as per 

section 135(6) 

Amount transferred to any fund 
specified under Schedule VII as per 

second proviso to section 135(5) 

 
Amount. Date of transfer Name of the 

Fund 
Amount. Date of 

transfer 

06 Lakhs NA NA Prabandh 
Samiti 
Adarsh 

6 lakhs   24.05.2023 
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(f) Excess amount for set-off, if any:1,81,000/- 

Sl. No. Particular Amount (in Rs.) 
(1) (2) (3) 
(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company 

as per section 135(5) 
12,05,000/- 

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 6,00,000/- 
(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-

(i)] 
NIL 

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or 
programmes or activities of the previous 
financial years, if any 

NIL 

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding 
financial years [(iii)-(iv)] 

1,86,000/- 

 

7. Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three 
Financial Years: 

SI 
No 

Preceding 
Financial 
Year. 

Amount 
transferred 
to Unspent 
CSR 
Account 
under 
section 135 
(6) (in Rs.) 

Balance 
Amount 
in 
Unspent 
CSR 
Account 
under 
subsection 
(6) of 
section 
135 (in 
Rs.) 

Amount 
spent in 
the 
Financial 
Year (in 
Rs.). 

Amount 
transferred to a 
Fund as specified 
under Schedule 
VII as per second 
proviso to 
subsection (5) of 
section 135, if any 

Amount 
remaining 
to be spent 
in 
succeeding 
financial 
years. (in 
Rs.) 
 

Defici
ency, 
if any 

Amount 
(in Rs). 

Date of 
transfer 

 

1. 2021-22 NIL 
2. 2020-21 
3. 2019-20 
 
8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social 
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year: NO   
      
If Yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/ 
acquired                                 
 
Furnish the details relating to such asset (s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social 
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year: 
 

Vidhya  
Mandir 
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Sl. 
No. 

Short 
particulars 

of 
the 

property or 
asset(s) 

 
[including 
complete 
address 

and 
location of 

the 
property] 

Pincode 
of 
the 

property 
or 

asset(s) 

Date of 
creation 

Amount 
of CSR 
amount 
spent 

Details of entity/ Authority/ 
beneficiary of the registered 

owner 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) 
     CSR 

Registration 
Number, if 
applicable 

Name Registered 
address 

        
 
(All the fields should be captured as appearing in the revenue record, flat no, house no, 
Municipal Office/Municipal Corporation/ Gram panchayat are to be specified and also the 
area of the immovable property as well as boundaries) 
 
9. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net 
profit as per subsection (5) of section 135. 
 
The overall CSR Expenditure was ₹ 12.05 lakhs during the financial year 2022-23 as against 
your Company endeavoured to meet the budgeted expenditure by contributing in various 
eligible CSR activities and has committed to incur expenditure for CSR initiatives through 
structured events or programs and projects. However, the same was not able to meet up due 
to unavoidable circumstances, but the Company had spent the unspent amount on May, 2023. 
The Company has taken steps in the right direction and going forward is committed to 
actively engage with the partners/NGOs to execute the said events or projects and programs 
and incur expenditure in accordance with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014. 
 

For and On behalf of Board of Directors of Agriwise Finserv Limited 
(Erstwhile StarAgri Finance Limited) 

 
 
 

Amith Agarwal   
          (Director) 

 
                 
 

G. Chandrashekhar 
(Chairman CSR Committee) 

 
 

                   
                  Mangala Prabhu 

(Member CSR Committee) 
 
 Place : Mumbai 
 Date : 25.05.2023 
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ANNEXURE - C 

 
 

Disclosures under Rule 12(9) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 
2014 as on 31st March, 2023 

 
A) Details of the Employees Stock Option Scheme: 
 
Sr. 
No. 

Particulars Agriwise Finserv Limited (Erstwhile StarAgri Finance 
Limited) Employee Stock Option Plan – 2015 

  Employee 
Stock 
Option 
Scheme 
2015 – I 

Employee 
Stock Option 
Scheme 2015 – 
Management 
Scheme 

Employee 
Stock Option 
Scheme 2017 – 
Scheme II 
 

Employee 
Stock Option 
Scheme 2017 – 
Scheme III 

a) Options granted 33,95,000 15,00,000 17,60,000 10,00,000 
b) Options vested 1,00,000  NIL NIL 
c) Options exercised NIL NIL NIL NIL 
d) Total number of 

shares arising as a 
result of exercise of 
option  

NIL NIL NIL NIL 

e) Options lapsed 32,95,000 15,00,000 17,60,000 10,00,000 
f) The exercise price NIL NIL NIL NIL 
g) Variation of terms of 

options 
NIL NIL NIL NIL 

h) Money realised by 
exercise of options 

NIL NIL NIL NIL 

i) Total number of 
options in force 

1,00,000 NIL NIL NIL 

 
B) employee wise details of options granted to: 
 

Employee Name Designation                 Options Granted 
a) Key Managerial Personnel 
Mr. Suresh Goyal Managing Director Nil 
Mr. Amit Goyal Whole Time Director Nil 
Mr. Gurinder S. Sehmbey* Chief Executive Officer 15,00,000 
Mr. TC Pattabiraman* Chief Financial Officer 10,00,000 
Mr. Sunil Lotke* Company Secretary 5,00,000 
b) Any other employee who receives a grant of options in any one year of option amounting 

to 5% or more of options granted during that year (including Ex-employees) 
Mr. Manish Odeka* Chief Risk Officer 8,00,000 
Mr. Harish Rawat* Business Head 3,00,000 
Mr. Sumit Rai * Credit Head 1,50,000 
Mr. Harish Gupta* Operation Head 1,50,000 
c) Identified employees who were granted option, during any one year, equal to or 

exceeding one percent of the issued capital (excluding outstanding warrants and 
conversions) of the company at the time of grant 

NIL 
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*Note: 
 
i.  Mr. Manish Odeka has resigned from the employment of the Company w.e.f. 31st July, 

2017. 
ii.    Mr. Sunil Lotke has resigned from the employment of the Company w.e.f. 18th January, 

2018. 
iii.    Mr. Sumit Rai has resigned from the employment of the Company w.e.f. 01st May, 2018. 
iv.   Mr. T.C. Pattabiraman has resigned from the employment of the Company w.e.f. 18th 

December, 2018. 
v.   Mr. Harish Gupta has resigned from the employment of the Company w.e.f. 03rd 

September, 2019. 
vi. Mr. Harish Rawat has resigned from the employment of the Company w.e.f. 15th March, 

2020. 
vii.  Mr. Gurinder S. Sehmbey has resigned from the employment of the company with effect 

from 22nd May, 2020. 
 
 
For and On behalf of Board of Directors of Agriwise Finserv Limited 
(Erstwhile StarAgri Finance Limited)   
   
 
 
   
Sureshchandra Goyal  Amith Agarwal 
Managing Director             Whole Time Director 
DIN: 02018073   DIN: 01140768 
 
Place : Mumbai 
Date : 25th May, 2023   
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ANNEXURE - D 
 

 

Form No. MR –3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 

 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 

To, 

The Members, 

Agriwise Finserv Limited 

(formerly known as StarAgri Finance Limited) 

We have conducted the Secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory 
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Agriwise Finserv Limited 
(formerly known as StarAgri Finance Limited) (hereinafter called “the Company”). 
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for 
evaluating the corporate conducts / statutory compliances and expressing our 
opinion thereon. 
 
Based on the verification of Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and 
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information 
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during 
the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company 
has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2023 
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company 
has followed proper Board - processes and compliance – mechanism in place to the 
extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 
 
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 
records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2023 
according to the provisions of: 
 

(i)  The Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) and the Rules made thereunder; 

 
(ii)  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules 

made thereunder;   
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(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and bye-laws framed 

thereunder – Not Applicable; 

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations 

made thereunder for compliance in respect of Foreign Direct Investment, 

Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings – Not 

Applicable;  

(v) The following regulations and guidelines prescribed under the Securities 

and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) are applicable during 

the audit period: - 

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition 

of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 – Not Applicable;  

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider 

Trading) Regulations, 2015 – Not complied along with NSE Circular dated 

28.10.2022 for Standard Operating Process under SEBI (PIT) Regulations or 

ensuring compliance with Structured Digital Database; 

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 – Not Applicable; 

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee 

Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 - Not Applicable;    

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-

Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021; 

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an issue and 

Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 – Not Applicable; 

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity 

Shares) Regulations, 2021– Not Applicable; 

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-Back of Securities) 

Regulations, 2018 - Not applicable. 

We have also examined compliance with applicable clauses of the following: 

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of the Company Secretaries of 

India for General Meetings, Board and Committees Meetings (i.e. Audit 

Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Corporate Social 

Responsibility Committee); 
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(ii) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 except SEBI circular dated 

29.03.2022 - Operational guidelines for ‘Security and Covenant Monitoring’ using 

Distributed Ledger Technology (DLT). The Company had made a requisite follow up 

for the same, however delay was from NSDL. 

 
During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of 

the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines and standards mentioned above except non-

filing of form MGT-6. Further the Company has CSR unspent amount of Rs. 4.14 lakhs for 

F.Y. 2022-23. 

 

We further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the 

Company and on examination of the relevant documents and records in pursuance 

thereof pertaining to return filings, on test-check basis, the Company has complied 

with the following laws applicable specifically to the Company: 

Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and its circulars, Master Circulars, notifications and 

its Directions as prescribed for NBFCs except for migrating to IPv6 platform pursuant to 

the Reserve Bank of India Master Direction on Information Technology Framework for the 

NBFC Sector. 

We further report that 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of 
Executive Directors, Non – Executive Directors and Independent Directors. There 
were no changes in the composition of the Board of Directors of the Company. 
 
Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and 
detailed notes on agenda were sent in advance or at a shorter notice and a system 
exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda 
items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 
 
As per the minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the 
decisions of the Board were unanimous and no dissenting views were expressed.  
 
Based on the representation made by the Company and relied upon, we further report 
that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with its 
size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable 
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 
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We further report that during the audit period, the Company has undertaken event / 

action having a major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above 

referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. referred to above viz. 

i. Payment of commission to Independent Directors; 

ii. Transfer of equity shares along with beneficial interest; 

iii. Appointment and resignation of Company Secretary; 

iv. Reconstitution of various committees; 

v. Approval from shareholders of the Company for the following items: 

a) Sale of Non-Performing Assets pertaining to principal outstanding not 

exceeding Rs. 15 crores; 

b) Re-appointment of Mr. Sureshchandra Goyal as Managing Director of the 

Company for a further period of three years w.e.f. 20th May, 2022 to 19th 

May, 2025; 

c) Approval of Related Party Transactions u/s 188 of the Act along with rules 

framed thereunder; 

d) Appointment of M/s. M.K. Dandeker & Co, Chartered Accountants (FRN.: 

000679S) as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of 5 years; 

e) Increasing the Borrowing Powers u/s 180(1)(c) of the Act up to Rs. 800 

crores; 

f) Creation of charges, mortgages, hypothecation on the immovable and 

movable properties of the Company u/s 180(1)(a) of the Act up to Rs. 800 

crores; 
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g) Sell, transfer, assign and/or dispose of the loan assets and receivables of the 

Company through securitization or direct assignment u/s 180(1)(a) of the 

Act up to Rs. 1,000 crores. 

For Bhatt & Associates Company Secretaries LLP 

 

 

 

 

 

Place: Mumbai       Bhavika Bhatt 

Date: 25.05.2023                                Designated Partner 

  ACS No.: 36181, COP No.: 13376 

                     UDIN: A036181E000335546 

                                                                 Peer Review Certificate: 2923/2023 

 

This Report is to be read with our letter annexed as Appendix A, which forms integral 

part of this report. 
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APPENDIX A 

To, 

The Members, 

Agriwise Finserv Limited 

(formerly known as StarAgri Finance Limited) 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1.  The responsibility of maintaining Secretarial record is of the management and 

based on our audit, we have expressed our opinion on these records. 

2.  We are of the opinion that the audit practices and process adopted to obtain 

assurance about the correctness of the secretarial records were reasonable for 

verification on test check basis. 

3.  We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records 

and books of accounts of the Company. 

5.  The management is responsible for compliances with corporate and other 

applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards etc. Our examination was limited 

to the verification of procedure on test basis and wherever required, we have 

obtained the Management Representation about the compliance of laws, rules 

and regulations etc. 

6.  The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of 

the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management 

has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

    For Bhatt & Associates Company 

Secretaries LLP 

 

Place: Mumbai                               Bhavika Bhatt 

Date: 25.05.2023                                             Designated Partner 

                                                ACS No.: 36181, COP No.: 13376 

                      UDIN: A036181E000335546 

                Peer Review Certificate: 2923/2023 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 
Industry structure and developments 
 
The NBFC sector in India comprises a group of diverse financial intermediaries that 
supplement the credit flow from the commercial sector and venture into markets and spaces 
the banking sector has overlooked. The RBI regulated all-India financial institutions (AIFIs), 
non-banking financial companies (NBFCs), primary dealers (PDs) and housing finance 
companies (HFCs), which are some of the leading players in this sector. 
 
GLOBAL ECONOMIC SCENARIO 
 
The Impact of the Russian Ukrainian Conflict The global economy faced multiple challenges 
throughout FY2023. The world economy began to sense relief from the COVID-19 slowdown, 
but the Russian & Ukrainian conflict destabilized it. This led to a severe energy crisis in 
Europe, sharply increasing the cost of living and severely impacting overall economic activity. 
Developed and developing countries are majorly concerned about the cost-of-living turmoil. 
The world market witnessed a food shortage due to the conflict, leading to an increase in food 
prices.  
 
The impact of the crisis devastated low-income households, especially in low-income 
countries. Policymakers worldwide have been compelled to tighten monetary measures due 
to the widening inflation. Despite the federal reserve's 4.00% increase in interest rates, 
inflationary pressures do not seem to recede as quickly as hoped. After such massive rate 
hikes, the sharp appreciation of the USD against most other currencies has significantly added 
to domestic price pressures and further exacerbated the cost-of-living crisis for many 
emerging markets and developing economies. The sudden interest rate hikes and subsequent 
decline in bond prices proved catastrophic for the Silicon Valley Bank and Signature Bank, 
demonstrating that bigger is not always better. Their failure had a domino effect, causing a 
global meltdown in banking stocks and highlighting the importance of a more decentralized 
and resilient financial system. 
 
NBFCs have a competitive edge in their superior understanding of regional dynamics, well-
developed collection systems and personalised services in the drive to expand financial 
inclusion in India. Lower transaction costs, quick decision making, customer orientation and 
prompt provision of services have typically differentiated NBFCs from banks. The reach and 
last mile advantages of NBFCs have empowered them with agility, innovation and a cutting 
edge in providing formal financial services to underbanked and unserved sections of the 
society. 
 
Policy measures by the Reserve Bank and the Government provided timely liquidity support 
to NBFCs, bolstered market confidence and reduced borrowing costs. As financial conditions 
and market access of NBFCs improved, many NBFCs also adopted prudent debt recycling to 
pay off their extant high-cost borrowings for new debt at a lower cost. 
 
Subsequent rise in income is enabling the demand for financial services across all income 
levels. The importance of financial inclusion created by The Reserve Bank of India (RBI) has 
driven the demand of the financial sphere even more across semi urban and rural areas. Also, 
with fintech’s coming into picture and changing the entire credit ecosystem, India is 
positioned to become one of the largest digital markets. 
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NBFCs have been focusing on transforming their funding approach with a number of them 
looking closely at co-lending and securitisation as well as borrowings. 
 
Post the second wave, the outlook brightened again; however, downside risks remain 
significant. Moreover, the third wave didn’t significantly impact the sector, given that it was 
not so much of a health crisis and the NBFCs were placed in a much better position, having 
learnt from the impact of the first two waves. 
 
Opportunities 
 
Non-Banking Financial Companies (NBFCs) Business Model is steady and fast in the country 
like India. As there is infinite need of credit and loans, Banks alone can’t fulfil all the demands. 
In such a scenario, NBFCs came into the forefront and held a prominent position. With 
effective risk detection, mitigation and management, NBFCs shall surely survive and cannot 
be replaced anytime sooner. 
 
In the Indian economy, NBFCs are playing a vital role in uplifting the Infrastructure, creation 
of wealth and employment generation. NBFCs are majorly focusing on the weaker sections of 
the society.  
 
NBFCs are offering a varied range of products, financing, leasing, housing finance, and gold 
loans for carrying out the new division, i.e. durable consumer Loans by taking into 
consideration the following key points:  
 

 Providing tailor-made products offering and products to the customers. 
 Uplifting the business model through improved efficiency and enhanced experience. 

 
Technology has revolutionized the traditional system of lending and borrowing. By adopting 
robust technology like Cloud Computing, Artificial Intelligence, Machine Learning, the 
NBFCs can have a better reach to the remote corners of India.  
 
Advanced technologies would help NBFCs in adopting the business and powered models 
that would help in facilitating the design launch and execution of the tailored products and 
services used by the NBFCs. Further, technology-driven services would help the NBFCs in 
lowering the costs and in increasing the customer base. NBFCs are now focusing on 
developing new and innovative products through advanced technologies. 
 
NBFCs using advanced technology would result in a better future of NBFCs. Technologies 
like Artificial Intelligence, Machine learning have prepared the lenders in evaluating the 
customer’s perception and also in maintaining alternative credit scoring models. For the better 
future of NBFCs, using the technology-driven business model, would reduce the dependency 
on manual tasks. 
 
Also, RBI as part of its efforts to develop a consumer-friendly and robust payment ecosystem, 
has consolidated and updated the guidelines concerning the issuance of cards and conduct of 
operations by card issuers in India. RBI has allowed NBFCs to issue credit cards without a 
banking partner subject to the prior approval of the Reserve Bank, and strengthen the 
grievance redressal mechanism. 
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NBFCs’ credit also gained traction with the support provided by regulatory initiatives. They 
have been allowed to tie up with multiple alternative lenders with digital platforms and 
commercial banks as well, which has been adding to their targeted customer base. 
 
Given their focus on lending to the sub-prime customer segment, and regulatory 
disadvantage viz SARFEASI, DRT, and capital adequacy requirements in comparison to 
commercial bank lenders, NBFCs are ensuring enhanced governance through a proactive, 
robust and agile risk management model. 
 
During the year under review, the balance sheet of NBFCs expanded at a faster rate than a 
year ago, driven essentially by growth in credit and investments of NBFCs-ND-SI. 
 
Threats 
 
Despite of the opportunities been provided to the NBFCs, they face a lot of challenges. While 
starting the NBFC and even in its smooth working, NBFC have been facing a lot of problems 
as listed below: 
 
Refinancing / NBFC Funding: Refinancing is a challenge NBFCs face in its smooth working. 
A major sources of refinancing for NBFC are the banks, capital markets or maybe its 
competitors. There is no other option for NBFC for the purpose of refinancing and in the 
course of business, refinancing is an important element for the efficient working as well as the 
sustainability of the growth. The present situation considering the refinancing options is not 
favourable to the sustainability of growth. 
 
Limited leverage ratio: Though small NBFCs are exempted from maintaining CRAR (Capital 
Adequate Ratio) but some restrictions are put upon them that they cannot surpass the 
leverage ratio beyond 7. As a result, these NBFC in order to comply with financial demand 
for efficient working have to depend on banks and financial institutions which causes 
problems to them as in lieu of this borrowed money, these financial institutions and banks 
carry out due diligence on the NBFC. This due diligence can be challenge to these NBFC. 
 
Defaulter’s information: There exists a credit risk to the NBFCs because of lack of information 
on defaulters. Banks does not provide NBFCs with the defaulters list which leaves NBFCs 
susceptible to credit risks. This poses a challenge to NBFC as there is lack of leverage regarding 
utility payments database in process of credit assessment. 
 
Credit rating: Obligation on deposit accepting NBFC to get investment-grade credit has been 
a challenge for NBFC. If this obligation is waived off, NBFCs will be eligible for accepting 
deposits. NBFCs cannot take public deposits if its rating is not up to minimum investment 
deposits. NBFCs right now is required to report to RBI about its position.  
 
These were some challenges NBFCs face but considering the growth opportunities and 
policies of government, in the near future NBFCs are poised to growth. 
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Business performances 
 
During the year under review it was challenging for the financial sector in terms of 
leverage/liquidity. However, during the year, the Company had made a Net Profit of 
approximately 120.70 Lakhs and the total asset of the Company stood at ₹ 27,524.11 lakhs out 
of which ₹ 24,687.5 lakhs was financial assets. Company’s total outstanding borrowings as on 
31st March, 2023, stood at ₹ 8,7587.37 lakhs including SBI Cash Credit, securitization and Non- 
Convertible debentures. 
 
the Company mobilized INR 8780.01 lakh from various Bank and NBFC. The Company 
disbursed INR 20,651 lakh during the financial year 2022-23. As on 31st March, 2023, the Asset 
Under Management (AUM) of the Company stood at INR 23,810/-lakhs. The Average 
borrowing cost to the company was approximately 11.24%. 
 
Outlook 
 
The COVID-19 pandemic has brought with it prolonged and monumental human suffering, 
disrupting the world economy in unimaginable ways. Humankind has survived such 
episodes in history by responding with grit and determination; the intensity of the crisis, 
notwithstanding. The Government of India was quick and decisive in responding to the 
pandemic. 
 
MSME sector was the most affected sector due to the pandemic in the last 2 years. 
Accordingly, the Indian Government introduced several credit measures to revive financial 
activity and growth in the sector. Those ranged from moratorium on existing loan facilities, 
additional credit lines to MSMEs and restructuring of existing facilities. 
 
Credit offtake continued to remain muted as the economy emerged from the covid crisis. The 
outlook for credit demand is positive as the economic sentiment improves and corporates gain 
confidence on capital spends. The coming year is expected to see an increase in capex spends 
by leading players in the commodity and industrial sectors, as well as inorganic growth 
opportunities especially through the IBC mechanism. 
 
NBFCs also recalibrated their business strategies, leveraging on digital technology with a 
strong emphasis on data analytics. Since the onset of the pandemic, most of the NBFCs had 
taken a cautious approach towards on boarding new customers and doing fresh 
disbursements. During the last one year, NBFCs have taken a relook at their overall business 
model, rethinking the strategy for near future.  
 
Unique challenges during ongoing COVID-19 crisis have prompted the Company to find 
innovative ways for our clients to connect to other value chain players and the end-consumers. 
Digitization and the ability to reach and manage customers remotely have emerged as a few 
large common themes. 
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In view of the significance of the NBFC sector for income and employment generation, many 
regulatory policies to support the sector have been extended. 
 
For the upcoming period, the Company target shall be to continue the business clearly and 
purposefully, with a primary focus to increase the quality of business with tight control over 
cost. It also looks forward to driving a positive growth through new innovations across all the 
business segments and other allied functions for the year ahead. 
 
Risks and concerns 
 
While the world and businesses are recovering from the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic 
of the last two years, new external and internal risks continue to challenge businesses in every 
possible way amplifying existing risks. Not only are the nature of risks evolving, but the speed 
of risk is increasing with faster time to impact. Geo-political situations like the Russia Ukraine 
war have further forced global businesses to revisit their operations.  
 
In the backdrop of obvious rise in the scope of business and increased regulatory rigour, what 
remains challenging is the implementation of risk-management strategies in the sector to 
ensure that the business models remain viable, adequately ring-fenced and sustainable. In the 
realm of risk management, the asset quality norms will bring to focus any gaps in credit risk 
management due to SMA framework while the trends of risk adjusted yields on investment, 
treasury earnings and ‘mark to market’ obligations can reveal the shortcomings in market risk. 
 
But any slackness in operational risk management (ORM), latent in the business, cannot come 
to fore quickly leading to accumulation of its adversity. ORM is inherent in people 
competency, inefficiency of technology and systemic failures that does not measure up 
immediately and cannot be quantified. They gradually erode the efficiency of the organisation 
drawing attention of stakeholders only after substantial damage is done. 
 
Appropriate ORM strategies should transcend the whole entity from bottom to top and vice 
versa. NBFCs should be able to carve out rigid standard operating procedures. 
 
Failing to tame the operational risks can have serious consequences threatening the 
sustainability of the organisations. A tough task awaits NBFCs to rein in operational risk much 
beyond going successful in scaling up business. A right risk prioritisation can be a recipe to 
thrive in the vibrant economy poised to unfold in post-pandemic regime. 
 
The sector is facing a liquidity crunch – NBFCs mostly generate liquidity through market 
borrowing and bank borrowing. At present due to mounting amount of NPA, banks are 
hesitating to lend anymore to NBFCs and market borrowing through bond or commercial 
paper is facing big difficulties. Banks have also restricted lending to NBFCs as their ratings 
have turned poor. This has added to the crunch and reduced profits margins. 
 
Asset quality is an evaluation of asset to measure the credit risk associated with it. Poor asset 
quality rating means high NPA's (non-performing assets). Banks and financial institutions 
have assets and liabilities of different maturities. This exposes them to Interest Rate Risk and 
Liquidity Risk. Poor risk management processes have resulted in frauds in large institutions.  
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There is an urgent need to stem the issues and crises being faced by the NBFC sector. Some 
external funding is essential to provide liquidity.  
 
The Company has adopted Risk Management Policy and Procedures. This policy establishes 
the philosophy towards risk identification, analysis & prioritisation of risks, development of 
risk mitigation plans & reporting on the risk environment of the Company. The Risk 
management policy aims to ensure that the organisational activities are undertaken within the 
Board approved risk appetite to protect the profitability, assets and reputation of the 
company. Various methodology was adopted to identify and mitigate risks to which they are 
subjected. The Company’s Risk can be classified majorly into Credit Risk, Liquidity Risk, 
Market Risk and Operational Risk. 
 
The Board is kept informed periodically of the significant risks associated with the business 
of the Company and the various risk identification and mitigation processes put in place by 
the management. 
 
Internal control systems and their adequacy 
 
(Refer to the section mentioned in Board Report) 
 
Developments in Human Resources 
 
The Company's various employee engagement platforms and initiatives have resulted in a 
vibrant, productive and enjoyable work environment. A structured approach to career 
development, leadership development, internal job rotations, and mentoring helps employees 
grow their careers and realize their potential. 
 
The Company has focused on identifying internal talent and nurture them through the culture 
of continuous learning and development, thereby building capabilities for creating future 
leaders. The Company is actively working on developing a culture driven by the collective 
spirit of experience and companywide ownership. Assignment, empowerment and 
accountability will be the cornerstone of the people lead processes. 
 
As on 31st March 2023, the Company had a total employee strength of 278. The coming year 
will be yet again focused on high growth with respect to manpower. 
 
With the start of the new financial year, once again the focus will be towards creating a more 
interactive and transparent culture, across the Company. Also, there will be an increased 
sentiment to simplify the HR process through various technological additions in the system 
for the Company. 
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3. Key Audit Matter 
 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of 
most significance in our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the current year. 
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Ind AS financial 
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide 
a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described 
below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report. 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
To the Members of Agriwise Finserv Limited 
 
Report on the Audit of Ind AS Financial Statements 
  

1. Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Agriwise 
Finserv Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 
31, 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, 
the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year 
then ended, and notes to the Ind AS financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.  

  
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required 
by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true 
and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed 
under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 
2023, the profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash 
flows for the year ended on that date. 

  
2. Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the 
Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements section 
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of 
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the 
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS financial statements 
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code 
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on Ind AS financial statements. 
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Sr. 
No. 

Key Audit Matter Auditor’s Response 

1 Impairment of financial assets 
(Expected Credit Losses) (as 
described in Note No.8 of the Ind 
AS financial statements) 
 
Ind AS 109 requires the Company 
to recognise impairment loss 
allowances in the financial assets. 
Such ECL allowance is required to 
be measured considering the 
guiding principles of Ind AS 109 
including.  
a. unbiased, probability 

weighted outcome under 
various scenarios; 

b. impact arising from forward 
looking macro-economic 
factors and; 

c. availability of reasonable and 
supportable information  

 
Applying these principles 
involves significant estimation in 
various underlying aspects, such 
as: 
 
a. staging of loans and 

estimation of behavioural life; 
b. determining macro-economic 

factors impacting credit 
quality of receivable; 

 
Considering the significance of 
such allowance to the overall 
financial statements and the 
degree of estimation involved in 
computation of expected credit 
losses, this area is considered as a 
key audit matter. 
 

The audit procedures performed by us 
to assess appropriateness of the 
impairment allowance basis ECL on 
loans included the following: 

1. We read and accessed the 
Company’s accounting policies for 
impairments of financial assets 
and their compliance with Ind AS 
109. 

 
2. We tested the criteria for staging of 

loans based on their past-due 
status to check compliance with 
requirement of Ind AS 109. 

 
3. We evaluated the reasonableness 

of the Management estimates by 
understanding the process of ECL 
estimation and tested controls 
around data extraction and 
valuation 

 
4. Tested the ECL model, including 

assumptions and underlying 
computation. 

 
5. Checked disclosures included in 

the Ind AS financial statements in 
respect of expected credit losses. 
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4.  Information other than the Ind AS financial statements and Auditor’s report 
thereon 

 The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for the 
preparation of the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the Company’s Annual Report but does not include the 
Ind AS financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Other 
information is expected to be made available to us after the date of our auditor’s 
report. 
Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other 
information and we will not express any form of assurance thereon.  
 
In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility 
is to read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, 
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with 
the Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  
 
When we read the other information, if we conclude that there is material 
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged 
with governance and determine the actions under the applicable laws and 
regulations. 
 

5.  Management and Board of Directors’ Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial 
Statements 

 The accompanying Ind AS financial statements have been approved by the 
Company’s Board of Directors. The Company’s Management and the Board of 
Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with 
respect to the preparation and presentation of these Ind AS financial statements 
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance 
including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the 
Company in accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act 
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility 
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application 
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring 
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true 
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and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 
 

 In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, the Board of Directors and 
management are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a 
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either 
intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so. 
 
The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial 
reporting process. 
 

 
6.  Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements 

 
 Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS 

financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with Standards on auditing will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error 
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these Ind AS financial statements. 

  
 As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on auditing, we exercise 

professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the 
audit. We also: 
 
i) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, 
or the override of internal control. 
 
ii) Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. 
Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our 
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opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system 
in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 
 
iii) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by 
management and Board of Directors. 
 
iv) Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors and management’s use 
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence 
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions 
that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Company to continue as a 
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Ind AS 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. 
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company 
to cease to continue as a going concern. 
 
v) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial 
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presentation. 

  
 We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during 
our audit. 

  
 We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have 

complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably 
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 

  
 From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we 

determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of Ind AS 
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. 
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation 
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our 
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 
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7.  Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) 

issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 
143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure 1” a statement on the matters specified 
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

  
 As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that: 
  
 a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to 

the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit 
of Ind AS Financial Statements. 
 

 b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by 
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 
 

 c) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including Other 
Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flow and Statement of Changes 
in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 
 

 d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the 
Indian Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with 
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 
 

 e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 
31, 2023, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is 
disqualified as on March 31, 2023, from being appointed as a director in terms of 
section 164 (2) of the Act. 
 

 f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to 
Ind AS financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of 
such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2” to this report. 
 

 g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in 
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in 
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the 
year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act. 
 

 h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in 
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as 
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amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us: 
 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on the financial 
position in its Ind AS financial statements – Refer Note 36 to the Ind AS 
financial statements;  

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative 
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses; 

 
iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 

Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 
 

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and 
belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from 
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by 
the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity 
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or 
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or 
on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 
 
(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and 
belief, no funds have been received by the Company from any person or 
entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, 
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in 
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate 
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries; and 
 
(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and 
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has 
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of 
Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material 
misstatement. 

 
v. The Company has not paid any dividend during the. Also, the Company has 

not proposed any dividend for the current year. 
 

vi. Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining 
books of account using accounting software which has a feature of recording 
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audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable with effect from April 1, 2023 to the 
Company and its subsidiaries, which are companies incorporated in India, 
and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of ompanies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 
2023. 

 
  
8. Other Matter 
 The Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 

2022, included in these Ind AS financial statements, have been audited by the 
predecessor auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those Ind AS 
Financial Statements on May 19, 2022. Our opinion is not modified in respect of 
this matter. 

  
For M.K.Dandeker & Co LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Reg. No. 000679S / S000103 
 
 
 
(S. Poosaidurai) 
Partner 
M. No. 223754 
UDIN: 23223754BGVSXM4796 

Date: May 25, 2023 

Place: Mumbai 
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Annexure 1 to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Ind AS financial 
statements of Agriwise Finserv Limited  
 
Referred to in paragraph 7 under Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of 
our report of even date 
 
According to the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and 
the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the 
best of our knowledge and belief, we state that: 
  
(i) a) A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, 

including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment, 
Capital Work in Progress, Right-of-use Assets. 
B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of 
intangible assets. 
 

b) The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its fixed assets by 
which all the Fixed assets are verified once in three years. In our opinion, this 
periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the 
Company and nature of its assets. According to the information and explanations 
given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 
 

c) The Company does not hold any immovable property, accordingly requirements 
under clause 3(i)(c) of the Order, are not applicable to the Company. 

 
d) The Company has not revalued its investment property and Property, Plant and 

Equipment (including Right-of -Use assets) during the year. 
 

e) No proceedings have been initiated or is pending against the Company during 
the year for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions 
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. 

 
(ii)  a) The Company’s business does not involve inventories and, accordingly, the 

requirements under clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order, are not applicable to the 
Company. 
 

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 
been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate, at 
points of time during the year, from banks and financial institutions on the basis 
of security of current assets. We have observed differences / reconciliation items 
in the quarterly return or statement filed by the Company with such banks or 
financial institutions as compared to the books of account maintained by the 
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Company. However, we have not carried out a specific audit of such statements. 
The details of such differences / reconciliation items are given in note no. 17 of 
the Ind AS financial statements of the Company. 

 
(iii) The Company has made investments in, and granted loans, secured or unsecured, 

to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties during the 
year, in respect of which: 

 
a) The Company’s principal business is to give loans, and hence reporting under 

clause 3(iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
 

b) The principal business of the Company is to give loans. The investments made 
and the terms and conditions of grant of all loans during the year are, in our 
opinion, prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.  The Company has 
not provided any advances in the nature of loans or given security.  
 

c) The Company, being a Non-Banking Financial Company (‘NBFC’), registered 
under provisions of RBI Act, 1934 has stipulated the schedule of repayment of 
principal and payment of interest for loan to customers. Since the principal 
business of the Company is to give loans, there are customers who are regular and 
do not have any overdue amount towards their loan and there are customers who 
have overdue of loan as at the balance sheet date.  Refer Note 50 to the Ind AS 
financial statements for summarised details of such loans which are not repaid by 
borrowers as per stipulations. 
 

d) In respect of following loans granted by the Company, which have been overdue 
for more than 90 days at the balance sheet date, as explained to us, the 
Management has taken reasonable steps for recovery of the principal amounts and 
interest: 

    
No. of 
cases 

Principal 
amount 
outstanding 

Interest overdue Total 
Outstanding 

Remarks, 
if any 

86 Rs. 515.27 
Lakhs 

Rs. 101.74 Lakhs Rs. 617.01 
Lakhs 

- 

 
e) The principal business of the Company is to give loans and hence reporting under 

clause (iii)(e) of the Order is not applicable. 
 

f) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans which 
are either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of 
repayment. 
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(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has complied with the 
provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of the loans given, investments 
made, or guarantees or security provided by it, to the extent applicable. 

  
(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 

of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). 
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 

  
(vi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government 

has not specified the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act, for 
the services of the Company. 

  
 

(vii) a)  Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, income-tax, goods and 
service tax, employees' state insurance, cess and other material statutory dues 
have been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities. As explained to 
us, the Company did not have any dues of excise duty, service tax, duty of customs 
and value added tax. 
 

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no 
undisputed dues in respect of provident fund, income-tax, goods and service tax, 
employees' state insurance, cess and other material statutory dues which were 
outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date 
they became payable. As explained to us, the Company did not have any dues of 
excise duty, service tax, duty of customs and value added tax. 

 
c) According to the records of the Company, the dues outstanding of income-tax, 

sales tax, goods and service tax, duty of customs, value added tax, service tax and 
cess on account of any dispute, are as follows: 
 

Name of the 
statute 

Nature of 
the dues 

Amount 
(Rs. 
Lakhs) 

Period to 
which the 
amount 
relates 

Forum where 
dispute is 
pending 

Amount 
Paid under 
protest (Rs. 
Lakhs) 

The Income 
Tax Act, 
1961 

Income Tax  102.61 
 

2016-2017 Commissioner 
of Appeal 
(Income Tax) 

25.65 
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The Gujarat 
State Tax on 
Professions, 
Trades, 
Callings and 
Employment 
Act, 1976 

Professional 
Tax 

0.19 2017-2023 Himmat 
Nagar - Nagar 
Palika 

- 

 

  
(viii) There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were 

surrendered or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 
1961 during the year.  

  
(ix) a) The Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or other borrowings or 

in the payment of interest thereon to banks or financial institutions or government.  
 

b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial 
institution or government or any government authority.  
 

c) To the best of our knowledge and belief, in our opinion, term loans availed by the 
Company were, applied by the Company during the year for the purposes for 
which the loans were obtained, other than temporary deployment pending 
application of term loans. 
 

d) On an overall examination of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company, 
funds raised on short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year 
for long-term purposes by the Company. 
 

e) The Company did not have any subsidiary or associate or joint venture during the 
year and hence reporting under clause (ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 
 

f) The Company did not have any subsidiary or associate or joint venture during the 
year and hence reporting under clause (ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 

 
(x) a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further 

public offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting 
under clause 3 (x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.  
 

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or (fully, partially 
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or optionally) convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, reporting 
under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

  
(xi) a) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true 

and fair view of the Ind AS financial statements and according to the information 
and explanations given by the management, we report that no fraud by the 
Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported 
during the year. 
 

b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been 
filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the 
date of this report by the Statutory auditors. 
 

c) As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower 
complaints received by the Company during the year and upto the date of this 
report. 

  
(xii) The Company is not a nidhi company and hence reporting under clause 3 (xii)(a) to 

3 (xii)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.  
  
(xiii) According to the information and explanations given by the management, 

transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of 
the Act where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the Ind 
AS financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

  
(xiv) a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system 

commensurate with the size and the nature of its business. 
 

b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to 
the Company during the year and till date of our audit report, in determining the 
nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures. 

  
(xv) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the 

Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons 
connected with them as referred to in section 192 of the Act. 

  
(xvi) a) The Company is required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank 

of India Act, 1934 and it has obtained the registration.  
 

b) The Company has conducted the Non-Banking Financial activities with a valid 
Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) as per the 
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Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. The Company has not conducted any Housing 
Finance activities and is not required to obtain CoR for such activities from the RBI.  
 

c) The company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the 
regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India and hence reporting under 
paragraph 3 (xvi)(c) is not applicable to the Company.  
 

d) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the 
Group has no CIC as part of the group. 
 

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our 
audit and the immediately preceding financial year. 
 

(xviii
) 

There has been a change of auditors in the Current year as per decisions of the 
Company. There was no resignation of statutory auditors of the Company. 

  
(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the 

financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and 
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the Ind AS financial 
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and 
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has 
come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists 
as on the date of the audit report that company is not capable of meeting its liabilities 
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one 
year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as 
to the future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based 
on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor 
any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the 
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due. 

  
(xx) a) In respect of other than ongoing projects, the Company has not transferred the 

unspent CSR amount as at the Balance Sheet date out of the amount that was 
required to be spent during the year, to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the 
Companies Act in compliance with the provision of sub-section (5) of section 135 
of the said Act till the date of our report since the time period for such transfer 
i.e. 6 months from the end of the financial year has not elapsed till the date of our 
report. 
 

b) The amount unspent on CSR activities for the year does not pertain to ongoing 
projects and therefore such amount was not required to be transferred to a special 
account in Compliance with provision of sub-section (5) of section 135 of the said 
Act. 



Auditor’s Report 2022-2023                                                                                                        61 | P a g e  
 

  
 

For M.K.Dandeker & Co LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Reg. No. 000679S / S000103 
 
 
 
(S. Poosaidurai) 
Partner 
M. No. 223754 
 
UDIN: 23223754BGVSXM4796 

Date: May 25, 2023 
Place: Chennai 
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Annexure 2 to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Ind AS financial 
statements of Agriwise Finserv Limited  
 
Referred to in paragraph [8(f)] under Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements of our report of even date 
 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Ind AS financial 
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”) 
 
1. We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial 

statements of Agriwise Finserv Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in 
conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for 
the year ended on that date. 

  
2. Management and Board of Directors’ Responsibility for Internal Financial 

Controls 
 The Company’s management and the Board of Directors responsible for 

establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal 
control with reference to Ind AS financial statements criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
(the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India” 
(ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance 
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring 
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and 
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 
2013. 

  
3. Auditors’ Responsibility 
 Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial 

controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on 
Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to 
an audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the Institute of Chartered 
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Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we 
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to Ind AS financial statements was established and maintained and if 
such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

  
 Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the 

adequacy of the internal financial controls system with reference to Ind AS financial 
statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial 
controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements included obtaining an 
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial 
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
 

 We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial 
controls system with reference to Ind AS financial statements. 

  
4. Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Ind AS financial 

statements 
 A company's internal financial control with reference to Ind AS financial 

statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Ind AS financial statements 
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.  
A company's internal financial control with reference to Ind AS financial 
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable 
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Ind 
AS financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only 
in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; 
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could 
have a material effect on the Ind AS financial statements. 

  
5. Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Ind AS 

financial statements 
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 Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to 
Ind AS financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper 
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud 
may occur and not be detected.  Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements to future periods 
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to Ind AS 
financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or 
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

  
6. Opinion 
 In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal 

financial controls system with reference to Ind AS financial statements and such 
internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements were 
operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control with 
reference to Ind AS financial statements criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

  
 
For M.K.Dandeker & Co LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Reg. No. 000679S / S000103 
 
 
 
(S. Poosaidurai) 
Partner 
M. No. 223754 
 
UDIN: 23223754BGVSXM4796 
 
Date: May 25, 2023 
Place: Mumbai 

 



Agriwise Finserv Limited (formerly known as StarAgri Finance Limited)

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023
(₹ in Lakhs)

Particulars Note
 As at 

March 31, 2023 
 As at 

March 31, 2022 
Assets

1 Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5 2,025.91                 509.04                    
Bank Balance other than (a) above 6 562.89                    487.89                    
Receivables
 - Trade Receivables 7 -                          -                          
 - Other Receivables 7.1 890.96                    609.91                    
Loans 8 17,293.32                24,300.78                
Investments 9 3,525.93                 3,689.26                 
Other Financial assets 10 388.49                    892.73                    

2 Non-financial Assets
Current Tax Assets 137.07                    177.82                    
Deferred Tax Assets 11 389.85                    429.81                    
Investment Property 12.1 -                          596.77                    
Property, Plant and Equipment 13.1 70.22                      43.04                      
Other Intangible Assets 13.2 326.04                    387.77                    
Right of Use assets 51 249.59                    184.95                    
Asset held for Sale 12.2 1,327.32                 -                          
Other non-financial assets 14 336.52                    246.93                    

Total assets 27,524.11                32,556.70                

Liabilities and Equity

3 Financial Liabilities
Payables
(I) Trade Payables

(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises -                          -                          
(ii) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises

15 145.22                    107.71                    

Debt securities 16 1,000.00                 1,000.00                 
Borrowings 17 7,758.37                 13,195.04                
Lease liability 51 286.41                    198.52                    
Other financial liabilities 18 423.20                    371.64                    

4 Non-financial liabilities
Current tax liabilities -                          -                          
Provisions 19 56.85                      51.17                      
Deferred tax liabilities
Other non-financial liabilities 20 143.14                    44.23                      
Total liabilities 9,813.19                 14,968.31                

5 Equity
Equity share capital 21 15,000.00                15,000.00                
Other equity 22 2,710.92                 2,588.39                 
Total equity 17,710.92                17,588.39                

Total liabilities and equity 27,524.11                32,556.70                

Significant Accounting Policies and notes to the Financial Statements 1-54   

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
As per our report of even date Agriwise Finserv Limited
For M.K.Dandeker & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 000679S / S000103

Sureshchandra Goyal Amith Agarwal
Managing Director Executive Director

S. Poosaidurai DIN: 02018073 DIN: 01140768
Partner
Membership No: 223754

Mumbai
May 25, 2023

Kalpeshkumar Ojha Nikita Shelke
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Membership No. A67955
Mumbai

May 25, 2023
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Agriwise Finserv Limited (formerly known as StarAgri Finance Limited)

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023
(₹ in Lakhs)

Particulars Note
 Year ended 

March 31, 2023 
 Year Ended 

March 31 2022 

1 Revenue from operations
Interest Income 23 3,104.18                 4,044.16                 
Net gain on fair value changes 24 1.29                         1.66                         
Fees and commission Income -                           -                           

Total Revenue from operations 3,105.47                  4,045.82                  

2 Other Income 25 603.11                     349.36                     

Total Income (1+2) 3,708.58                  4,395.18                  

3 Expenses
Finance Costs 26 1,114.96                  1,483.27                  
Impairment on financial instruments 27 (318.39)                   73.05                      
Employee Benefits Expenses 28 1,428.71                  937.32                     
Depreciation, amortization and impairment 29 205.02                    198.24                    
Other expenses 30 1,117.62                  824.36                     

Total Expenses 3,547.92                  3,516.24                  

4 Profit/(loss) before tax 160.66                     878.94                    

5 Tax Expense: 31
(1) Current Tax -                           -                           
(2) Deferred Tax charge / (credit) 39.96                       266.84                    

39.96                       266.84                     

6 Profit/(loss) for the year 120.70                     612.10                     

7 Other Comprehensive Income
 A. Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

 Acturial gain/(loss) on employee defined benefits 9.42                         12.78                       

 Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 
(2.37)                       (3.22)                       

Subtotal (A) 7.05                         9.56                         
 B. Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss -                          -                           

Subtotal (B) -                          -                          

Other Comprehensive Income (A+B) 7.05                         9.56                         

Total Comprehensive Income for the year 127.75                     621.66                     

Earnings per equity share 32
Basic (Rs.) 0.08                         0.41                         
Diluted (Rs.) 0.08                         0.41                         

Significant Accounting Policies and notes to the Financial Statements 1-54

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
As per our report of even date Agriwise Finserv Limited
For M.K.Dandeker & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 000679S / S000103

Sureshchandra Goyal Amith Agarwal
Managing Director Executive Director

S. Poosaidurai DIN: 02018073 DIN: 01140768
Partner
Membership No: 223754
Mumbai
May 25, 2023

Kalpeshkumar Ojha Nikita Shelke
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Membership No. A67955
Mumbai

May 25, 2023
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Agriwise Finserv Limited (formerly known as StarAgri Finance Limited)

Statement of Cash flow for the year ended March 31, 2023
(₹ in Lakhs)

Particulars
Year ended 

March 31, 2023
Year Ended 

March 31 2022
A CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

(Loss)/Profit Before Tax 160.66 878.94
Adjustments for non-cash items:
Impairment Loss/(Gain) of receivables & loans (318.39)                      344.44                            
Depreciation, amortization and impairment 205.02                        198.24                            
Finance cost 1,114.96                     1,483.27                         
Interest income on fixed deposit (40.16)                        (39.48)                             
Loss/(profit) on sale of investment 1.29                            (1.66)                               
Bad debts written off 291.42                        271.39                            
Reversal of ESOP reserve (5.22)                          (92.82)                             
OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL 
CHANGES

1,409.58 3,042.32

Adjustments for working capital changes:
Decrease / (Increase) in Receivables (281.05)                      (553.44)                           
Decrease / (Increase) in Loans 6,295.88                     7,613.37                         
Decrease / (Increase) in Other Financial and Non Financial Assets 414.65                        (76.42)                             
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payables 37.51                          14.87                              
Increase / (Decrease) in Other Financial and Non Financial Liabilities 148.91                        182.91                            
Increase / (Decrease) in Provisions 12.73                          (40.35)                             
Cash flow (used in) operations 8,038.21                     10,183.26                       
Income taxes refund / (paid) 40.75                          (121.62)                           
Net cash generated / (used in) from operating activities (A) 8,078.96 10,061.64

B CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (PPE) and intangible Assets 
including changes in ROU

(62.58)                        9.09                                

Fixed deposit placed with bank (75.00)                        (104.26)                           
Interest income on security deposit & fixed deposits 40.16                          14.19                              
Investment in security receipt 1,116.05                     (4,080.00)                        
Collection from the security receipt (978.48)                      416.50                            
Purchase of mutual fund -                             (1,625.00)                        
Sale of mutual fund 24.47                          2,101.66                         
Net cash generated / (used in) investing activities (B) 64.62                          (3,267.82)                        

C CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of lease liability (including interest) (97.13)                        (94.79)                             
Finance cost paid (Exluding interest on lease liability) (1,092.91)                    (1,386.47)                        
Proceed from term loan 500.00                        2,500.00                         
Repayment of Term Loan (other than debt securities) (6,363.01)                    (7,645.85)                        
(Proceeds)/Repayments of short term borrowing 426.34                        (778.05)                           
Net cash generated / (used in) from financing activities (C) (6,626.71)                    (7,405.16)                        

Net Increase / (Decrease) in cash and equivalents (A+B+C) 1,516.87                     (611.34)                           

D Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of the year
Balance with banks
- in current account 455.59                        1,094.21
- Cash on hand 53.45                          26.17
Cash and cash equivalent as per note 5 509.04                        1,120.38

Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning
Balance with banks
- in current account 2,000.38                     455.59
- Cash on hand 25.53                          53.45
Cash and cash equivalent as per note 5 2,025.91                     509.04

Significant Accounting Policies and notes to the Financial Statements 1 to 59

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
As per our report of even date Agriwise Finserv Limited
For M.K.Dandeker & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 000679S / S000103

Sureshchandra Goyal Amith Agarwal
Managing Director Executive Director

S. Poosaidurai DIN: 02018073 DIN: 01140768
Partner
Membership No: 223754
Mumbai
May 25, 2023

Kalpeshkumar Ojha Nikita Shelke
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Membership No. A67955
Mumbai

May 25, 2023
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Agriwise Finserv Limited (formerly known as StarAgri Finance Limited)

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakh)

(a) Equity Share Capital (₹ in Lakhs)
Balance as at April 1, 2021                     15,000.00 
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period 
errors

                                 -   

Restated balance as at April 1, 2022                                  -   
Changes in equity share capital during the year                                  -   
Balance as at March 31, 2022                     15,000.00 
Balance as at April 1, 2022                     15,000.00 
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period 
errors

                                 -   

Restated balance as at April 1, 2022                                  -   
Changes in equity share capital during the year                                  -   
Balance as at March 31, 2023                     15,000.00 

(b) Other equity (₹ in Lakhs)
OCI

Retained Earnings 
(Surplus in profit and 

loss account)

Statutory reserve u/s 45-
IC of The Reserve 
Bank of India Act, 

1934*

Employees 
Stock Option 

Reserve

Re-measurement 
of the net defined 

benefit plans

(Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.)
Balance as at April 1, 2021                       1,212.07                             736.79                 98.04                       12.65              2,059.55 
Profit for the year                          612.10                                     -                        -                               -                   612.10 
Post employement defined benefit obligation -                                                                   -                        -                           9.56                     9.56 
Employee Stock options                                  -                                       -   (92.82)                                          -   (92.82)                
Transfer to/from reserves (122.42)                                                   122.42                      -                               -                          -   
Balance as at March 31, 2022                       1,701.75                             859.21                   5.22                       22.21              2,588.39 
Profit for the year 120.70                         -                                  -                   -                                          120.70 
Post employement defined benefit obligation -                               -                                  -                   7.05                                            7.05 
Employee Stock options -                               -                                  (5.22)                -                          (5.22)                  
Transfer to/from reserves * (24.14)                         24.14                              -                   -                                                 -   
Balance as at March 31, 2023 1,798.31                      883.35                            -                   29.26                      2,710.92             

* Represents reserve created @ 20% of the profit after tax for the year as per the provisions of section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

Significant Accounting Policies and notes to the Financial Statements 1 to 59

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
As per our report of even date Agriwise Finserv Limited
For M.K.Dandeker & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 000679S / S000103

Sureshchandra Goyal Amith Agarwal
Managing Director Executive Director

S. Poosaidurai DIN: 02018073 DIN: 01140768
Partner
Membership No: 223754
Mumbai
May 25, 2023

Kalpeshkumar Ojha Nikita Shelke
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Membership No. A67955
Mumbai

May 25, 2023
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